
Northern Lakes 
Community Mental 

Health Authority 

Board of Directors Packet 

January 15, 2026 

1



The Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority Board will meet on January 16, 2026, at 
527 Cobb St, Cadillac, MI 49601 & Virtually at: https://www.northernlakescmh.org/about-us/board-of-

directors/ or via phone: +1 810-258-9588,  877 408 48# 

AGENDA 
Time      Item #  

1:00 p.m.     1  Opening: 
• Confirm Quorum and Pledge of Allegiance
• Approval of Agenda
• Conflict of Interest
• Consent Agenda (Minutes)*
• Appointment of Timekeeper

1:05 p.m.     2  Public Comment 

1:10 p.m.     3 Celebrate Northern Lakes – Residential Care Aides 
  HR Coordinator 

1:15 p.m.     4  Report of Officers: 
• Recipient Rights Director Report

o Brian Newcomb, Director of the Office of Recipient Rights
• Chief Executive Officer Report

o Lynda Zeller, Chief Executive Officer
o Quarterly Key Performance Indicators (KPI Report)

• Chief Financial Officer Report
o Melissa Bentgen, Interim Chief Financial Officer

2:00 p.m.     5   Committee Reports: 
• NMRE Update

o Ruth Pilon
• Executive

o Greg McMorrow
• Finance

o Al Cambridge
• Policy

o Dave Freedman
• Personnel

o Ruth Pilon
• Community Engagement

o Christal Frost-Anderson

2:45 p.m.    6   Unfinished Business 
- 2026 Annual Workplan
- Review Bylaws for action in February
- CMHAM Winter Conference – Board Attendance

2:50 p.m.    7   Public Comment 

2:55 p.m.    8 Announcements/Board Comments/Presentations 

3:00 p.m.    9  Adjourn, Next Meeting: February 19, 2026 - Grayling 

NOTICE: If any person with a disability needs accommodation, please call 231-935-3567 three days prior 
to the posted meeting date. 2

https://www.northernlakescmh.org/about-us/board-of-directors/
https://www.northernlakescmh.org/about-us/board-of-directors/
tel:+18102589588,,453356557


  
Administrative Office, 105 Hall Street, Suite A, Traverse City, MI 49684  

 
Board of Directors Mee/ng Minutes 

  
December 18, 2025                                    1:00 p.m.  

  
 
Board Members Present: Christal Frost Anderson, Kim Morley, Vince Cornellier, Ruth Pilon, 
Dean Smallegan, Ben Townsend, Lynn Pope, Penny Morris, Ty Wessell, Dave Freedman, Tony 
Lentych, Mary Marois, Al Cambridge, Greg McMorrow.  
 
Others Present: Lynda Zeller, Melissa Bentgen, Brian Newcomb, Kim Silbor, Daniel Mauk, Neil 
Rojas, Cindy Petersen, Danielle Arens, Marsha Brown, Lauren Van Hulle, Ashley Thompson, 
Greg Charter, Melodee Eastman, Hillary Rapphun, Alexandra Coon.  

 

Virtual A7endees: Aimee Horton Johnson, Abby Schonfeld, Amanda Link, Amanda Ritchie, 
Amy Kotulski, Andrea Weiss, Angie Schroeder, Ann Ketchum, April Weinrick, Ashley Cross, 
Becky Brown, Brian Newcomb, Candace Kauska-Dietrich, Carol Balousek, ChrisWna Hasty, 
Elizabeth ToYen, Erica Smith, Erin Barbus, Gina Schlegel, Hannah Driver, Heather Sleight, 
Jennifer Edwards, Jeremiah Williams, Jillian Smithingell, Jordan Byington, Joseph Barkman, 
Judi Crane, Kaitlin MerriY, Kayla Sklener, Kellee Hoag, Lane Kiffen, Lisa Jones, Lisa Woodcox, 
Lori Stendel, Manda Clements, Mats Andtbacka, Melissa Trout, Meryah MarWn, Michael 
Corby, Rob Palmer, Somer Quinlan, Sophorn Klingelsmith, Teri Dougherty, Terri Henderson, 
Tiffany Fewins, Victoria McDonald, 4 unknown.  

 
Call to Order: 1:00 p.m. 
Conflict of Interest: None 
Timekeeper: Ruth Pilon 
Approval of Agenda: Yes, no changes requested. 
 
Public Comment: None. 
 
Celebrate Northern Lakes: The Board of Directors and the Leadership team at Northern Lakes 
CMHA recognized the excellent work of the Grand Traverse and Leelanau County ACT Team.  
 
Stakeholder RecogniFon: Cindy Petersen presented Danielle Arens with a cerWficate of 
appreciaWon for her contribuWons, past and present, to our community, consumers and Agency.  
 
 
 

3



Report of Officers:   
 
Recipient Rights Report: Brian Newcomb, Director of the Office of Recipient Rights, presented his report 
to the Board. The report can be found in the board packet. Mr. Newcomb shared that his department 
has filled one advisor posiWon and has one advisor vacancy to fill. Mr. Newcomb spoke about the 
upcoming Board member recipient rights training that is scheduled to take place in February.  
 
Chief ExecuFve Officer’s Report: Lynda Zeller, Chief ExecuWve Officer of Northern Lakes, presented her 
report to the Board. Ms. Zeller used an updated reporWng format that will beYer fit the parameters of 
the enabling agreement and the bylaws moving forward. The drab of the 2026 work plan was included in 
the Board packet and will be finalized in January. New graphs were included to beYer show key 
performance indicators. Ms. Zeller spoke about the annual submission that is due at the end of February 
that will include community data, needs assessments, and more. Ms. Zeller recommended for one of the 
next “Celebrate Northern Lakes” presentaWons that the N6CIS team be recognized for their excellent 
work in the community. There will be more informaWon about the group’s work that will be given to the 
Board to share with their consWtuents.  
 
Chief Financial Officer’s Report: Al Cambridge, finance commiYee chair and Board member, spoke for 
Melissa Bentgen, Interim Chief Financial Officer of Northern Lakes. There was no financial report to 
present this month while the agency transiWoned into using a different template. Two months’ worth of 
financial reports will be presented at the next Board meeWng in January.  
 
Commi7ee Reports:   
 
NMRE:  
Ms. Pilon reviewed updates regarding the NMRE commiYee meeWng. Ms. Pilon spoke about enrollment 
decline, movement in healthy MI, Statewide capitaWon and the current liWgaWon involving CMHs and 
MDHHS.  
 
ExecuFve:  
Mr. McMorrow, the Chairperson of the Board, brought to the aYenWon of the Board that the ExecuWve 
commiYee would like to create an employment contract with the Northern Lakes CEO, Ms. Zeller. A work 
agreement exists; a contract does not. The contract would have similar features to a county commission 
contract.  
 
Finance: Mr. Cambridge shared that the next policy that will be up for review will be about 
reconciliaWon. The Board was given a list of contracts that will be voted on, deferring acWon for another 
meeWng to allow review. Mr. Cambridge spoke about cost containment, bringing higher needs 
consumers back into our catchment and cash flow. Ms. Zeller added that each area is being worked on 
and the informaWon will be shared with the NMRE as the Agency conWnues to take proacWve steps.  

4



 

 
Policy: Mr. Freedman shared that the policy commiYee will meet in January.  
 
Personnel: Ms. Pilon shared that the personnel commiYee will meet next on February 27. 
 
Community Engagement: Ms. Frost Anderson shared that the community engagement commiYee met 
on November 20 and will meet again in January. The commiYee is currently mapping out community 
presentaWons that will be added to the agenda each month as well as IdenWfying partners and 
stakeholders to engage with.  
 
Unfinished Business: Mr. Freedman menWoned that the New York Times arWcle included in the Board 
packet is worth the read and is something that should be paid aYenWon to.  
 
Public Comment: Marsha Brown, a Home Supervisor for Northern Lakes, shared a story about a 
consumer who has been with the home for 21 years aber mulWple failed placements and who has done 
well in that environment. 
 
Announcements/ Board Member Reports/ Board AssociaFon: Mr. Cambridge aYended the ROOC 
Christmas party and encouraged future aYendance.  
Mr. Lentych shared that his agency set aside 1.7 million dollars for IDD services and spoke about the 
issues consumers face when it comes to housing.  
 
Next MeeFng: February 19, 2026 – Grayling 
 
Adjournment: 3:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION: Accept the purchasing policy presented at the last Board MeeFng. 
 
RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: D. Smallegan 
SECONDER: A. Cambridge 

MOTION: Accept the final 2026 budget as presented. 
 
RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: D. Smallegan 
SECONDER: M.Marois 

5



Respecnully submiYed,  
 
Alexandra Coon, Interim ExecuWve Administrator 

__________________                            

Greg McMorrow, Board Chairperson      Lynn Pope, Secretary      

_______________                                                     __________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

6



Office of Recipient Rights Director’s Report 
January 2026 

Complaint Source 

Complaint Source Count 
Anonymous 1 
Community/General Public 2 
Guardian/Family 5 
ORR 13 
Recipient 12 
Staff 30 
Total 63 

5 Year Trends 

Dates represented 10/01/23-01/02/24  10/1/24-01/02/25  10/1/25-01/02/26 Board Operated Homes
Complaints 127 123 63 11
OJ, No Right Inv. 20 30 10 0
Interventions 15 14 10 4
Investigations 93 79 43 7
Investigations Comp 93 79 17 4
Investigations open 0 0 26 3
Inv > 90 days 0 0 0 0
Inv < 90 days 93/93100%) 79/79(100%) 17/17(100%) 4/4(100%)
Summary Report Avg 96/96100%) 79/79(100%) 14/14(100%) 4/4(100%)

NLCMHA staff alleg. 30 27 10
NLCMHA Staff W/I 1 yr 3 6 1 1

Abuse I & II Abuse III Neglect I & II Services Suited to 
Condition

Total

FY2022 44 46 25 151 418
FY2023 39 17 21 126 347
FY2024 29 26 4 169 326
FY2025 33 12 11 146 295
FY2026 0 0 0 9 16

144
98
93

7

Neglect III

152

7



Complaints Per Provider: 

October 1, 2025- January 2, 2026 

Program Substantiated Pending Not 
Substantiated 

NA 

Beacon Home at Trolley Center 0 2 0 0 

Beacon Home at Woodland 0 2 0 0 

Danes AFC 1 0 0 0 

Elmwood AFC 2 5 0 0 

Friendship Family Home 0 4 0 0 

Grand Traverse Mental Health Crisis and 
Access Center 

0 0 1 0 

Great lakes Center for Autism 1 1 0 0 

Heart and Soul Living LLC 0 1 0 0 

Hickory Hill AFC LLC 0 2 0 0 

HL Office/Roscommon County 0 1 0 0 

Hope Network Neo Birdsong 1 0 0 0 

Hope Network Neo Breton 0 1 0 0 

Hope Network Neo Bristol 5 1 0 0 

Hope Network Neo Grandville 1 0 0 0 

Hope Network West Michigan - Cadillac 
Center 

0 1 0 0 

IDD Adult Case Management 1 1 1 0 

IDD Children's Case Management 0 0 1 0 

Jones Lake AFC Home 1 1 0 0 

Kennedy House West, LLC 1 0 0 0 

Mama T's AFC 0 1 0 0 

MI Independent Living, LLC 0 1 0 0 

North Arrow ABA 0 2 0 0 

Northern Lakes CMH Authority 1 1 2 1 

Ohana AFC 0 1 0 0 

Packard Specialized Residential 0 0 1 0 

Pearl Street Home 2 0 0 0 

Psychiatric Services 1 0 1 0 

Real Life Living Services 0 1 0 0 

Seneca Place Home 3 2 1 0 

Serenity AFC 0 1 0 0 

8



Spectrum Community Services SIP - 
Kentucky 

1 0 0 0 

Summerfield AFC 0 1 0 0 

TC Office/Grand Traverse County 0 3 0 0 

Wright Street AFC Home 1 0 0 0 

Respectfully submitted, 

Brian Newcomb  

Director of Recipient Rights 

9



Chief Executive Officer’s 

Report to the Board 
January 9, 2026 

GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY: 
NLCMHA Board:  
• 2026 Annual Work Plan:   The 2026 Annual Work Plan FINAL DRAFT is included for your

approval consideration.  It is due this month according to the Enabling Agreement.
• Key Performance Indicator (KPI) quarterly report: The quarterly report is included.   I would like

to suggest adjusting a couple of the metrics to provide you with better information.  I will
explain at the board meeting.

• February items:   February meeting will include the following items: annual bylaws
review/revisions, scheduling time for Recipient Rights training for board members in late
February or March (the State requires this training. It takes two hours, and it is in person),
Annual Report Submission for FY 2025 to MDHHS described below and FY 2025 NLCMHA Annual
Report draft.

County:  
• County Board Chair and Administrator Connections:  As of January 9, I will have met face to

face with Missaukee and Grand Traverse Officials.  I have inquiries into other county offices to
do the same but have not yet secured dates for a first meeting for:   Crawford, Leelanau,
Roscommon, Wexford.

STATE: 
• FY 2025 “Annual Submission” reports:  As noted above, these reports to MDHHS and NMRE are

in process.
o The MDHHS report is due February 28 and includes items such as waiting lists,

services requested, community data, stakeholder survey, and Needs Assessment
with planned action in 5 priority areas.

o Our final EQI (encounter data) report and Financial Status Report (FSR) for FY 2025
are also due in February to MDHHS.

o For Medicaid funded services, NMRE will aggregate data for all CMHSPs in our
region.

• High Need Children: We received a letter from MDHHS informing all CMHs that we can no
longer use Medicaid funds for certain high need children in Child Caring Institutions (CCIs).
We have two high-needed adolescents with I/DD who need this level of care and cannot
safely be cared for in the parents’ home.  I am discussing this with fellow CMHs and the
NMRE to determine options and strategy for discussion with the State.

NMRE:  
• “Look Back 2020, 2021, 2022 NMRE”:  Similar to last month’s update on this topic.  Support for

Melissa (Interim CFO) continues weekly from Centra Wellness CFO and North Care PIHP CEO.
The General Ledger (GL) and account mapping is a laborious process after which we will be able
to run the 2025 Financial Status Report (FSR).     Once the 2025 FSR is run successfully, Melissa
will proceed with running the 2020, 2021 and 2022 FSRs.  There will need to be some additional

10



mapping adjustments made to those years due to differences in programs.  However, that 
mapping process should not be as labor intensive.   Once 2020, 2021 and 2022 FSRs are 
complete we will be able to proceed with the review by our auditor, RPC, as authorized by the 
board.    

SERVICES AND WORKFORCE: 
• Utilization Management: We are in the process of reconfiguring our Utilization Management

Committee (UMC).    UMC activities include retrospective and concurrent reviews to ensure
appropriate levels of care and medical necessity for individuals, and monitoring trends for early
alert to outliers and barriers to care.    Early data from the new UMC processes suggest NLCMHA
may be keeping people open to services beyond readiness for discharge.  This contributes to
untimely access for new people coming into the system.   And it contributed to overspending
General Fund (non-Medicaid) by 100 % ($6 million instead of $3 million) last year and it also
contributed to our Medicaid spending being significantly higher than neighboring CMHs.

• Gratitude from staff: The staff at the four office locations asked that I convey their deep
appreciation to the board for the gifts at the holidays.  During a time when it just is not feasible
for the Authority to provide any type of extra compensation or holiday gift for the employees,
the personal support from the board members meant so much.    Each office is using the gift in
different ways.    Your intent to send a message of gratitude to and value of the staff was very
well received.

COMMUNITY AND PARTNERSHIPS: 
• Public Comment: Public comment at the December meeting, while greatly appreciated, did not

require additional follow-up from the CEO or staff.
• Communications and Media:   relevant articles and correspondence are attached.

STEWARDSHIP AND FINANCES: 
• Cash Flow: The cost containment strategies initiated last summer under Interim CEO Curt

Cummins stopped the two-year downward trend in cash on hand.  Yet in December we did have
to request an early capitation payment from NMRE to make both payroll and the accounts
payable due that month.    We did not request additional funds, just early payment.  The efforts
mentioned above under Utilization Management and Network Management will cause a
positive trend over time, though it will take several months.

• Account Reconciliation Policy: Edits to the Account Reconciliation policy will be considered by
the Finance Committee this month.

• Financial Reports: The monthly Financials for October and November will be sent later than the
rest of the board packet.   Our Interim CFO Melissa is continuing the work to remap accounts
and produce the Financial Status Report for 2025, but this is also causing a delay with routine
financial reports.  By January most expenses for October are booked, so this is the first month
we will be able to see how we are comparing against FY 2026 budget.

Respectfully submitted, Lynda Zeller, CEO 

11



   
  T

O
PI

C
 

T
IM

E
 O

N
 

A
G

E
N

D
A

 
B

O
A

R
D

 
M

T
G

 
FR

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y
 

M
O

N
T

H
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 A
pp

ro
va

l o
f B

oa
rd

 B
y-

La
w

s 
10

 M
IN

 
X

 
A

nn
ua

l 
Ja

nu
ar

y 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
15

 M
IN

 
X

 
A

nn
ua

l 
Ja

nu
ar

y 

20
25

 A
nn

ua
l R

ev
ie

w
 

30
 M

IN
 

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
A

nn
ua

l R
ec

ip
ie

nt
 R

ig
ht

s R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 fr
om

 p
rio

r 
FY

 a
s s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 M

D
H

H
S 

20
 M

IN
 

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 

C
EO

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

D
is

tri
bu

te
 

5 
M

IN
 

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 

FY
 2

02
5 

N
or

th
er

n 
La

ke
s C

M
H

A
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 a

nd
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t, 
R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e,
 a

nd
 C

us
to

m
er

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 R

ep
or

t 
A

tta
ch

m
en

t 3
, E

na
bl

in
g 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

10
 M

IN
 

X
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
A

pr
il 

Ju
ly

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

D
as

hb
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t 
Pe

rs
on

s s
er

ve
d,

 c
os

t, 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
10

 M
IN

 
X

 
M

on
th

ly
 

Ev
er

y 
M

on
th

 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t D

is
cl

os
ur

e 
St

at
em

en
t 

5 
M

in
 

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

M
ay

 

C
od

e 
of

 C
on

du
ct

 D
ec

la
ra

tio
n 

5 
M

IN
 

A
nn

ua
l 

M
ay

 

C
EO

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

30
 M

IN
 

A
nn

ua
l 

A
pr

il 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l, 
Si

ng
le

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

A
ud

it 
30

 M
IN

 
X

 
A

nn
ua

l 
In

iti
at

ed
 in

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

D
is

cu
ss

 a
t B

oa
rd

 in
 Ju

ne
 

In
tro

du
ci

ng
 S

la
te

 o
f O

ff
ic

er
s’

 
C

an
di

da
te

s 
10

 M
IN

 
X

 
A

nn
ua

l 
A

pr
il 

-  
To

 b
e 

vo
te

d 
on

 in
 

M
ay

, o
th

er
 c

an
di

da
te

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

at
 th

at
 

tim
e.

 

12



Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
Pr

es
en

ta
tio

n:
  

B
eh

av
io

ra
l H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 Ju
st

ic
e:

  J
ai

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
, A

ss
is

te
d 

O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t (
A

O
T)

 

10
 M

IN
 

   
   

   
 X

 
A

nn
ua

l 
A

pr
il 

R
ec

ip
ie

nt
 R

ig
ht

s T
ra

in
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 
B

oa
rd

 M
em

be
rs

 
3 

ho
ur

 ti
m

e 
bl

oc
k 

A
nn

ua
l 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 

El
ec

tio
n 

of
 O

ff
ic

er
s 

   
 1

0 
M

IN
 

   
   

   
X

 
A

nn
ua

l 
M

ay
 

C
EO

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
   

 1
0 

M
IN

 
   

   
   

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

M
ay

 

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
Pr

es
en

ta
tio

n:
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r P

er
so

ns
 w

ith
 M

en
ta

l 
Ill

ne
ss

 (M
I/S

M
I)

:  
A

C
T,

 O
ut

pa
tie

nt
, 

C
ris

is
 

10
 M

IN
 

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

M
ay

 

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
Pr

es
en

ta
tio

n:
  

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r P

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

n 
In

te
lle

ct
ua

l/D
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l D

is
ab

ili
ty

 

10
 M

IN
 

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

Ju
ne

 

R
ec

ip
ie

nt
 R

ig
ht

s S
em

i-A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t 
to

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 

Fi
rs

t 6
 m

on
th

s o
f 2

02
6 

10
 M

IN
 

X
 

Se
m

i A
nn

ua
l 

Ju
ne

 

FY
 2

02
6 

B
ud

ge
t A

m
en

dm
en

t, 
In

iti
al

 
FY

 2
02

7 
B

ud
ge

t a
nd

 2
02

6 
C

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 

20
 M

IN
 

   
   

   
X

 
A

nn
ua

l 
Ju

ly
 

B
oa

rd
 M

em
be

r P
er

 D
ie

m
 &

 C
os

t o
f 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

10
 M

IN
 

A
nn

ua
l 

Ju
ly

 

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
Pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
: 

R
ec

ov
er

y 
an

d 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

10
 M

IN
 

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ug

us
t 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e,

 Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

C
us

to
m

er
 

Se
rv

ic
es

: A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t a
nd

 B
oa

rd
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 

20
 M

IN
 

   
   

   
X

 
A

nn
ua

l 
A

ug
us

t 

13



Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
rin

g 
90

 m
in

 - 
2 

H
ou

rs
 

A
nn

ua
l 

Se
pt

em
be

r 1
0t

h 

A
nn

ua
l C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

Fo
r B

oa
rd

 M
em

be
rs

 
10

 M
IN

 
   

   
   

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

A
ug

us
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
Pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
: 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 S
er

io
us

 
Em

ot
io

na
l D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 (S

ED
) 

10
 M

IN
 

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

Se
pt

em
be

r 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

:  
A

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t t

o 
Pe

rs
on

ne
l C

om
m

itt
ee

 
   

 1
0 

M
IN

   
  

A
nn

ua
l 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

(n
ot

e:
 th

is
 is

 a
 

ch
an

ge
 fr

om
 D

ec
em

be
r) 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

an
d 

Se
cu

rit
y:

 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

   
  1

0 
M

IN
 

X
 

A
nn

ua
l 

O
ct

ob
er

 

A
nn

ua
l P

la
nn

in
g 

C
al

en
da

r f
or

 2
02

7 
C

al
en

da
r Y

ea
r 

10
 M

IN
 

X
 

N
ov

em
be

r 

B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
Sc

he
du

le
 fo

r 2
02

7 
C

al
en

da
r Y

ea
r 

10
 M

IN
 

   
   

   
 X

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

B
oa

rd
 M

em
be

r T
er

m
s f

or
 2

02
7 

5 
M

IN
 

X
 

N
ov

em
be

r 

E
ac

h 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
R

ep
or

t o
f O

ff
ic

er
s 

•
O

R
R

 D
ire

ct
or

•
C

EO
 R

ep
or

t
•

C
FO

 R
ep

or
t

45
 M

in
 

X
 

M
on

th
ly

 
Ev

er
y 

M
on

th
 

14



C
om

m
itt

ee
 R

ep
or

ts
 (f

ro
m

 th
e 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 C

ha
irs

): 
•

N
M

R
E 

U
pd

at
e

•
R

R
A

C
 U

pd
at

e 
af

te
r m

ee
tin

g
•

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e
•

Fi
na

nc
e

•
Po

lic
y

•
C

om
m

un
ity

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
Se

rv
ic

es
•

Pe
rs

on
ne

l

45
 m

in
 

X
 

M
on

th
ly

 
Ev

er
y 

M
on

th
 

C
el

eb
ra

te
 N

or
th

er
n 

La
ke

s 
10

 M
in

 
X

 
M

on
th

ly
 

Ev
er

y 
M

on
th

 
C

el
eb

ra
te

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

10
 m

in
ut

es
 

X
 

Ev
er

y 
M

on
th

 (o
r a

t l
es

se
r 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 
by

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t C

om
m

itt
ee

 
an

d 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
) 

15



Page  37 | V e r s i o n  4 - 1 1 - 2 3

Attachment III 

Northern Lakes CMH Authority Key Performance Indicators 
(to be reported to the NLCMHA Member Counties Quarterly) 

NLCMHA Mission: To improve the overall health, wellness, and quality of life of the individuals, 

families, and communities that we serve. 

Objective Strategic Objective 

1 Transform the NLCMHA’s behavioral health services into a nationally recognized, results-based 
model of care by promoting a common vision, accountable collective action, transparency, 
and innovative programs. 

2 Ensure individuals served at NLCMHA receive quality services to meet their unique needs. 

3 Ensure individuals and families receive quality services to meet their unique needs, resulting in 
access to the right services, at the right time, in the right amount. 

4 Build and support a community that promotes recovery and resilience to help individuals and 
families thrive. 

5 Promote behavioral health wellness through prevention and early intervention services and 
supports. 

6 Strengthen community partnerships to better integrate and coordinate services towards a 
sustained shared vision of excellence 

7 Create and maintain a highly efficient, transparent, and responsive organization. 

Measure Prior Quarter 
Results 

FY 24-25
Target 

FY 24-25
Current Qtr

Ensure individuals served at NLCMHA receive quality services to meet their unique needs. (5 
Measures) 

Percent of consumers at NLCMHA readmitted to psychiatric 
inpatient services within 90 days 

<20% 

Percent of consumers who were diverted from psychiatric 
inpatient admission  

>30%

Number of substantiated Recipient Rights’ Complaints. <5 

Number of Upheld Appeals <5 

Number of Upheld Grievances <5 

Ensure individuals and families receive quality services to meet their unique needs, resulting in 
access to the right services, at the right time, in the right amount. (6 Measures) 

Percent of adults newly enrolled in Mental Health services who 
had their first clinical service within 14 days of enrollment 

>80%

❖ Strategic Objectives

❖ Key Performance Indicators

Page 38 of 39

23%

71%

30%

38%

67%

46%

9
6

21

21

16



Page  38 | V e r s i o n  4 - 1 1 - 2 3

Percent of children newly enrolled in Mental Health services who 
had their first clinical service within 14 days of enrollment 

>80%

Percent of adults newly enrolled in Substance Abuse services 
who had their first clinical service within 14 days of enrollment 

>80%

Percent of adults newly enrolled in developmental disability 
services who had their first clinical service within 14 days of 
enrollment 

>80%

Percent of children newly enrolled in developmental disability 
services who had their first clinical service within 14 days of 
enrollment 

>80%

Percent of Substance Use Disorder (SUD) clients  successfully 
discharged who re-entered services within 90 days 

<25% 

Build and support a community that promotes recovery and resilience to help individuals and 
families thrive. (2 Measures) 

Number of certified peers employed during the quarter >8

Percent of consumers surveyed in the Behavioral Health 
Satisfaction Survey who were satisfied with the person- 
centered planning process (This is done annually).

>85%

Strengthen community partnerships to better integrate and coordinate services towards a 
sustained shared vision of excellence (1 Measure) 

Percent of consumers who were discharged from a psychiatric 
hospital and had a follow-up service within 30 days 

>90%

Measure Last Quarter 
Results 

FY 2023 
Target 

Peer Specialists and Recovery Coaches (2 Measures) 

Number of new Certified Peer Specialists to include those in 
specialty tracks of family and youth 

>2

Number of people trained in Recovery Coaching >5

Communication (2 Measures) 

Number of public outreach events per quarter >3

Number of hits to the NLCMHA website >100

Outreach Services (1 Measure) 

Number of interventions from Crisis Response Team >24

Operational/Legal Matters (2 Measures) 

Staff turnover per quarter <10% 

Claims filed with Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority <3 

❖ Workload Measures

Page 39 of 39

63%

92%

71%

98%

65%

56%

64%

N/A N/A

N/AN/A

10

100%

10

95%

13 13
58,910

75

16%7%

100%

FY 24-25
Current Qtr

4

35,300

0 0

1 1

17



FY
20

25
-2

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Fo

r 
G

ra
nd

 T
ra

ve
rs

e 
C

ou
nt

y

A
re

a 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
A

pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

up
po

rts
 

(H
om

eb
as

ed
, R

es
pi

te
, 

R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

C
lu

bh
ou

se
 a

nd
 

N
ur

si
ng

14
5,

67
7.

83
$ 

   
13

2,
66

1.
35

$ 
   

12
6,

78
5.

58
$ 

   
17

7,
08

1.
10

$ 
   

14
7,

68
9.

74
$ 

   
17

3,
73

8.
79

$ 
   

 
18

1,
86

2.
82

$ 
   

17
7,

13
6.

48
$ 

   
17

7,
59

4.
55

$ 
   

21
7,

32
7.

29
$ 

   
19

9,
92

6.
16

$ 
   

18
6,

06
8.

46
$ 

   
17

8,
88

2.
04

$ 
   

13
3,

12
7.

00
$ 

   
A

ut
is

m
 S

er
vi

ce
s

14
7,

43
3.

75
$ 

   
14

1,
45

3.
14

$ 
   

14
7,

77
0.

67
$ 

   
17

6,
26

8.
96

$ 
   

13
6,

59
8.

30
$ 

   
15

9,
65

1.
04

$ 
   

 
17

1,
79

1.
76

$ 
   

15
6,

04
5.

92
$ 

   
13

6,
46

8.
59

$ 
   

15
9,

46
5.

35
$ 

   
12

5,
73

5.
44

$ 
   

11
8,

26
7.

85
$ 

   
13

1,
76

8.
69

$ 
   

11
,5

93
.6

5
$ 

   
  

C
as

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
A

C
T 

an
d 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t P
la

nn
in

g
21

6,
70

7.
28

$ 
   

19
9,

52
9.

11
$ 

   
18

5,
16

0.
99

$ 
   

24
5,

46
0.

81
$ 

   
23

1,
70

0.
72

$ 
   

24
4,

65
3.

27
$ 

   
 

27
4,

55
0.

16
$ 

   
26

2,
93

1.
78

$ 
   

25
3,

43
7.

00
$ 

   
37

5,
60

0.
30

$ 
   

32
9,

66
0.

63
$ 

   
34

4,
39

8.
47

$ 
   

31
7,

65
7.

82
$ 

   
24

1,
32

3.
76

$ 
   

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

iv
in

g 
Su

pp
or

ts
1,

35
6,

54
0.

86
$ 

1,
26

1,
55

0.
98

$ 
1,

29
4,

19
1.

10
$ 

1,
38

9,
20

4.
91

$ 
1,

23
1,

16
7.

88
$ 

1,
44

3,
86

4.
21

$ 
 

1,
38

3,
75

3.
24

$ 
1,

40
7,

51
0.

64
$ 

1,
42

2,
30

8.
37

$ 
1,

54
4,

72
7.

65
$ 

1,
57

3,
46

3.
95

$ 
1,

51
8,

76
7.

81
$ 

1,
52

2,
07

9.
24

$ 
1,

32
2,

83
9.

23
$ 

C
ris

is
 S

er
vi

ce
s, 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 
an

d 
Te

st
in

g
12

4,
95

2.
00

$ 
   

12
2,

36
9.

40
$ 

   
98

,9
25

.9
0

$ 
   

  
14

7,
94

5.
26

$ 
   

11
6,

37
8.

24
$ 

   
13

9,
54

4.
38

$ 
   

 
14

5,
40

7.
60

$ 
   

13
3,

41
9.

96
$ 

   
12

3,
29

8.
83

$ 
   

27
6,

11
9.

58
$ 

   
29

3,
70

6.
06

$ 
   

29
5,

88
1.

15
$ 

   
24

6,
66

4.
86

$ 
   

25
5,

07
4.

23
$ 

   
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
Le

ve
l

91
,2

25
.5

4
$ 

   
  

92
,0

33
.6

3
$ 

   
  

86
,8

19
.1

5
$ 

   
  

10
3,

47
1.

05
$ 

   
97

,9
89

.6
0

$ 
   

  
98

,2
12

.3
0

$ 
   

   
10

8,
13

9.
89

$ 
   

10
1,

97
3.

36
$ 

   
10

1,
67

3.
84

$ 
   

11
1,

89
3.

51
$ 

   
95

,8
02

.7
4

$ 
   

  
10

7,
10

0.
06

$ 
   

12
6,

14
1.

02
$ 

   
86

,9
62

.1
1

$ 
   

  
Ps

yc
hi

at
ric

 In
pa

tie
nt

28
3,

60
6.

33
$ 

   
26

4,
54

9.
73

$ 
   

14
9,

22
1.

39
$ 

   
25

5,
87

8.
70

$ 
   

19
6,

96
0.

59
$ 

   
19

9,
96

6.
39

$ 
   

 
24

9,
80

2.
10

$ 
   

20
8,

62
6.

58
$ 

   
30

7,
49

3.
68

$ 
   

18
3,

05
8.

09
$ 

   
32

6,
01

4.
63

$ 
   

20
0,

73
7.

67
$ 

   
26

1,
76

6.
15

$ 
   

79
,5

90
.0

0
$ 

   
  

Ps
yc

ho
th

er
ap

y 
an

d 
O

ut
pa

tie
nt

 
Se

rv
ic

es
14

9,
65

0.
83

$ 
   

12
3,

61
5.

07
$ 

   
10

7,
93

0.
28

$ 
   

14
1,

58
7.

14
$ 

   
13

7,
59

7.
40

$ 
   

14
5,

77
0.

38
$ 

   
 

14
2,

82
4.

10
$ 

   
13

9,
51

6.
97

$ 
   

13
9,

13
9.

49
$ 

   
41

8,
13

1.
59

$ 
   

37
7,

48
4.

22
$ 

   
39

1,
64

8.
12

$ 
   

48
3,

58
9.

78
$ 

   
32

2,
37

4.
94

$ 
   

V
oc

at
io

na
l &

 S
ki

lls
 B

ui
ld

in
g,

 
Fa

m
ily

 a
nd

 H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s

67
,0

30
.8

1
$ 

   
  

57
,3

07
.5

1
$ 

   
  

50
,0

39
.8

4
$ 

   
  

69
,7

22
.0

9
$ 

   
  

62
,1

45
.4

5
$ 

   
  

62
,3

37
.7

6
$ 

   
   

61
,8

05
.9

3
$ 

   
  

65
,7

76
.4

5
$ 

   
  

66
,0

87
.4

2
$ 

   
  

70
,3

01
.8

2
$ 

   
  

54
,9

64
.5

4
$ 

   
  

54
,5

83
.2

0
$ 

   
  

63
,3

46
.7

9
$ 

   
  

51
,5

30
.6

1
$ 

   
  

O
th

er
12

,5
61

.6
8

$ 
   

  
9,

08
1.

16
$ 

   
   

 
8,

66
9.

05
$ 

   
   

 
9,

05
8.

44
$ 

   
   

 
10

,2
90

.0
0

$ 
   

  
9,

05
9.

76
$ 

   
   

  
15

,0
47

.4
0

$ 
   

  
12

,6
14

.0
6

$ 
   

  
12

,0
47

.4
9

$ 
   

  
13

,6
82

.3
4

$ 
   

  
12

,5
84

.3
3

$ 
   

  
12

,4
35

.5
9

$ 
   

  
8,

43
9.

02
$ 

   
   

 
4,

50
5.

53
$ 

   
   

 
To

ta
l

2,
59

5,
38

6.
91

$ 
2,

40
4,

15
1.

08
$ 

2,
25

5,
51

3.
95

$ 
2,

71
5,

67
8.

46
$ 

2,
36

8,
51

7.
92

$ 
2,

67
6,

79
8.

28
$ 

 
2,

73
4,

98
5.

00
$ 

2,
66

5,
55

2.
20

$ 
2,

73
9,

54
9.

26
$ 

3,
37

0,
30

7.
52

$ 
3,

38
9,

34
2.

70
$ 

3,
22

9,
88

8.
38

$ 
3,

34
0,

33
5.

41
$ 

2,
50

8,
92

1.
06

$ 

N
um

be
r o

f R
eg

is
te

re
d 

Pe
op

le
 

R
ec

ei
vi

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

94
0

 
95

5
 

90
0

 
1,

00
2

   
   

   
   

   
96

2
 

99
3

 
1,

02
9

   
   

   
   

   
1,

03
2

   
   

   
   

   
1,

03
2

   
   

   
   

   
1,

05
7

   
   

   
   

   
1,

03
4

   
   

   
   

   
1,

04
1

   
   

   
   

   
1,

01
1

   
   

   
   

   
93

7
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 C
os

t p
er

 R
eg

is
te

re
d 

Pe
rs

o n
 S

er
v e

d
2,

76
1.

05
$ 

   
   

 
2,

51
7.

44
$ 

   
   

 
2,

50
6.

13
$ 

   
   

 
2,

71
0.

26
$ 

   
   

 
2,

46
2.

08
$ 

   
   

 
2,

69
5.

67
$ 

   
   

  
2,

65
7.

91
$ 

   
   

 
2,

58
2.

90
$ 

   
   

 
2,

65
4.

60
$ 

   
   

 
3,

18
8.

56
$ 

   
   

 
3,

27
7.

89
$ 

   
   

 
3,

10
2.

68
$ 

   
   

 
3,

30
3.

99
$ 

   
   

 
2,

67
7.

61
$ 

   
   

 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Tr
an

s a
ct

io
ns

 P
ro

vi
de

d
11

3,
00

7
   

   
   

  
10

2,
08

7
   

   
   

  
10

0,
05

9
   

   
   

  
11

0,
94

2
   

   
   

  
98

,7
95

   
   

   
   

 
11

0,
55

8
   

   
   

   
10

5,
95

6
   

   
   

  
10

6,
12

3
   

   
   

  
10

5,
35

3
   

   
   

  
11

2,
66

6
   

   
   

  
10

7,
98

2
   

   
   

  
10

2,
26

9
   

   
   

  
10

4,
67

1
   

   
   

  
59

,5
45

   
   

   
   

 

A
ve

ra
ge

 C
os

t p
er

 T
ra

ns
ac

tio
n

23
$

 
24

$
 

23
$

 
24

$
 

24
$

 
24

$
 

26
$

 
25

$
 

26
$

 
30

$
 

31
$

 
32

$
 

32
$

 
42

$
 

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
ID

D
26

2
 

27
3

26
1

27
8

26
8

27
4

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
0

27
6

27
4

26
8

 
25

9
C

ou
nt

 o
f C

hi
ld

 ID
D

62 
68

64
63

73
73

70
81

81
73

79
75

74 
64

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
SM

I
51

4
 

50
9

47
7

54
5

50
5

53
2

54
6

53
6

53
9

58
0

55
1

56
5

53
5

 
48

8
C

ou
nt

 o
f C

hi
ld

 S
ED

10
2

 
10

5
98

11
6

11
6

11
4

13
0

13
2

12
9

12
4

12
8

12
7

13
4

 
12

6
To

ta
l

94
0

 
95

5
 

90
0

 
1,

00
2

   
   

   
   

   
96

2
 

99
3

 
1,

02
9

   
   

   
   

   
1,

03
2

   
   

   
   

   
1,

03
2

   
   

   
   

   
1,

05
7

   
   

   
   

   
1,

03
4

   
   

   
   

   
1,

04
1

   
   

   
   

   
1,

01
1

   
   

   
   

   
93

7
 

ID
D

 A
du

lt 
C

os
t

1,
22

2,
44

7.
13

$ 
1,

13
2,

49
3.

80
$ 

1,
13

0,
08

9.
00

$ 
1,

24
7,

78
0.

39
$ 

1,
09

8,
99

5.
75

$ 
1,

27
0,

10
8.

54
$ 

 
1,

21
6,

16
3.

83
$ 

1,
24

8,
70

4.
14

$ 
1,

27
5,

30
8.

85
$ 

1,
45

3,
89

5.
30

$ 
1,

48
2,

10
6.

20
$ 

1,
42

1,
31

9.
99

$ 
1,

45
6,

37
0.

40
$ 

1,
21

3,
49

0.
97

$ 
ID

D
 C

hi
ld

 C
os

t
23

2,
58

7.
34

$ 
   

22
6,

45
0.

67
$ 

   
23

7,
98

1.
82

$ 
   

26
9,

44
9.

84
$ 

   
23

3,
08

7.
91

$ 
   

26
8,

30
8.

04
$ 

   
 

28
3,

48
4.

99
$ 

   
27

7,
58

6.
11

$ 
   

25
4,

87
7.

25
$ 

   
30

0,
91

5.
24

$ 
   

26
3,

03
3.

11
$ 

   
25

3,
04

4.
73

$ 
   

26
6,

90
3.

12
$ 

   
11

3,
89

9.
26

$ 
   

A
du

lt 
SM

I C
os

t
96

0,
12

5.
36

$ 
   

89
7,

66
5.

41
$ 

   
74

9,
72

6.
02

$ 
   

1,
01

8,
85

6.
83

$ 
88

5,
59

3.
07

$ 
   

98
0,

36
2.

59
$ 

   
 

1,
03

3,
66

4.
37

$ 
95

5,
23

4.
87

$ 
   

1,
01

4,
32

7.
45

$ 
1,

36
5,

82
9.

00
$ 

1,
42

7,
24

0.
07

$ 
1,

29
6,

23
0.

64
$ 

1,
29

0,
63

9.
86

$ 
96

3,
87

3.
53

$ 
   

C
hi

ld
 S

ED
 C

os
t

18
0,

22
7.

08
$ 

   
14

7,
54

1.
20

$ 
   

13
7,

71
7.

11
$ 

   
17

9,
59

1.
40

$ 
   

15
0,

84
1.

19
$ 

   
15

8,
01

9.
11

$ 
   

 
20

1,
67

1.
81

$ 
   

18
4,

02
7.

08
$ 

   
19

5,
03

5.
71

$ 
   

24
9,

66
7.

98
$ 

   
21

6,
96

3.
32

$ 
   

25
9,

29
3.

02
$ 

   
32

6,
42

2.
03

$ 
   

21
7,

65
7.

30
$ 

   
To

ta
l

2,
59

5,
38

6.
91

$ 
2,

40
4,

15
1.

08
$ 

2,
25

5,
51

3.
95

$ 
2,

71
5,

67
8.

46
$ 

2,
36

8,
51

7.
92

$ 
2,

67
6,

79
8.

28
$ 

 
2,

73
4,

98
5.

00
$ 

2,
66

5,
55

2.
20

$ 
2,

73
9,

54
9.

26
$ 

3,
37

0,
30

7.
52

$ 
3,

38
9,

34
2.

70
$ 

3,
22

9,
88

8.
38

$ 
3,

34
0,

33
5.

41
$ 

2,
50

8,
92

1.
06

$ 

A
du

lt 
ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 c

on
su

m
er

4,
66

5.
83

$ 
   

   
 

4,
14

8.
33

$ 
   

   
 

4,
32

9.
84

$ 
   

   
 

4,
48

8.
42

$ 
   

   
 

4,
10

0.
73

$ 
   

   
 

4,
63

5.
43

$ 
   

   
  

4,
29

7.
40

$ 
   

   
 

4,
41

2.
38

$ 
   

   
 

4,
50

6.
39

$ 
   

   
 

5,
19

2.
48

$ 
   

   
 

5,
36

9.
95

$ 
   

   
 

5,
18

7.
30

$ 
   

   
 

5,
43

4.
22

$ 
   

   
 

4,
68

5.
29

$ 
   

   
 

C
hi

ld
 ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 c

on
su

m
er

3,
75

1.
41

$ 
   

   
 

3,
33

0.
16

$ 
   

   
 

3,
71

8.
47

$ 
   

   
 

4,
27

6.
98

$ 
   

   
 

3,
19

2.
99

$ 
   

   
 

3,
67

5.
45

$ 
   

   
  

4,
04

9.
79

$ 
   

   
 

3,
42

6.
99

$ 
   

   
 

3,
14

6.
63

$ 
   

   
 

4,
12

2.
13

$ 
   

   
 

3,
32

9.
53

$ 
   

   
 

3,
37

3.
93

$ 
   

   
 

3,
60

6.
80

$ 
   

   
 

1,
77

9.
68

$ 
   

   
 

A
du

lt 
SM

I C
os

t p
er

 c
on

su
m

er
1,

86
7.

95
$ 

   
   

 
1,

76
3.

59
$ 

   
   

 
1,

57
1.

75
$ 

   
   

 
1,

86
9.

46
$ 

   
   

 
1,

75
3.

65
$ 

   
   

 
1,

84
2.

79
$ 

   
   

  
1,

89
3.

16
$ 

   
   

 
1,

78
2.

15
$ 

   
   

 
1,

88
1.

87
$ 

   
   

 
2,

35
4.

88
$ 

   
   

 
2,

59
0.

27
$ 

   
   

 
2,

29
4.

21
$ 

   
   

 
2,

41
2.

41
$ 

   
   

 
1,

97
5.

15
$ 

   
   

 

C
hi

ld
 S

ED
 C

o s
t p

er
 c

on
su

m
er

1,
76

6.
93

$ 
   

   
 

1,
40

5.
15

$ 
   

   
 

1,
40

5.
28

$ 
   

   
 

1,
54

8.
20

$ 
   

   
 

1,
30

0.
36

$ 
   

   
 

1,
38

6.
13

$ 
   

   
  

1,
55

1.
32

$ 
   

   
 

1,
39

4.
14

$ 
   

   
 

1,
51

1.
90

$ 
   

   
 

2,
01

3.
45

$ 
   

   
 

1,
69

5.
03

$ 
   

   
 

2,
04

1.
68

$ 
   

   
 

2,
43

5.
99

$ 
   

   
 

1,
72

7.
44

$ 
   

   
 

To
ta

l
2,

76
1.

05
$ 

   
   

 
2,

51
7.

44
$ 

   
   

 
2,

50
6.

13
$ 

   
   

 
2,

71
0.

26
$ 

   
   

 
2,

46
2.

08
$ 

   
   

 
2,

69
5.

67
$ 

   
   

  
2,

65
7.

91
$ 

   
   

 
2,

58
2.

90
$ 

   
   

 
2,

65
4.

60
$ 

   
   

 
3,

18
8.

56
$ 

   
   

 
3,

27
7.

89
$ 

   
   

 
3,

10
2.

68
$ 

   
   

 
3,

30
3.

99
$ 

   
   

 
2,

67
7.

61
$ 

   
   

 

18



FY
20

25
-2

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Fo

r 
L

ee
la

na
u 

C
ou

nt
y

A
re

a 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
A

pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

up
po

rts
 

(H
om

eb
as

ed
, R

es
pi

te
, 

R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

C
lu

bh
ou

se
 a

nd
 

N
ur

si
ng

13
,1

03
.7

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

14
,7

06
.0

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

11
,0

46
.7

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

18
,0

01
.7

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

16
,9

87
.4

1
$ 

   
   

   
20

,1
75

.2
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
22

,5
86

.8
2

$ 
   

   
   

16
,7

91
.1

3
$ 

   
   

   
17

,7
80

.6
1

$ 
   

   
   

16
,8

31
.0

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

19
,5

64
.0

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

19
,7

08
.1

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

16
,4

42
.4

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
,2

59
.9

6
$ 

   
   

   
A

ut
is

m
 S

er
vi

ce
s

5,
09

3.
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
5,

50
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

5,
95

9.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
8,

55
4.

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

9,
54

2.
50

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

,5
39

.7
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
11

,3
46

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

12
,2

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
12

,5
41

.7
5

$ 
   

   
   

10
,4

17
.8

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

11
,3

76
.5

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
09

4.
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
3,

53
6.

52
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$

 
C

as
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

A
C

T 
an

d 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
nn

in
g

22
,8

56
.4

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

21
,5

11
.2

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

18
,7

32
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

17
,3

67
.6

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

18
,9

15
.9

5
$ 

   
   

   
19

,4
65

.4
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
21

,2
77

.2
9

$ 
   

   
   

17
,5

36
.2

2
$ 

   
   

   
14

,2
74

.2
9

$ 
   

   
   

29
,2

70
.7

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

21
,5

02
.8

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

25
,5

05
.8

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

27
,3

19
.6

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

24
,4

47
.3

9
$ 

   
   

   

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

iv
in

g 
Su

pp
or

ts
16

7,
14

5.
77

$ 
   

   
  

15
7,

79
2.

30
$ 

   
   

  
15

8,
90

2.
24

$ 
   

   
  

16
9,

35
1.

80
$ 

   
   

  
14

7,
82

4.
12

$ 
   

   
 

17
0,

85
0.

34
$ 

   
   

  
15

7,
24

7.
67

$ 
   

   
 

16
6,

16
5.

43
$ 

   
   

 
15

4,
11

3.
50

$ 
   

   
 

17
2,

96
3.

93
$ 

   
   

  
17

4,
07

5.
33

$ 
   

   
  

16
8,

50
4.

87
$ 

   
   

  
18

1,
37

8.
32

$ 
   

   
  

14
7,

28
1.

87
$ 

   
   

 
C

ris
is

 S
er

vi
ce

s, 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

an
d 

Te
st

in
g

14
,4

09
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

14
,2

36
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
37

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
4,

16
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
79

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
7,

10
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

13
,1

02
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
12

,1
07

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

6,
61

9.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

,3
74

.3
8

$ 
   

   
   

 
11

,0
91

.2
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

41
2.

05
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
,9

87
.5

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
26

4.
15

$ 
   

   
   

  

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

Le
ve

l
5,

85
7.

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

8,
51

1.
11

$ 
   

   
   

   
5,

92
2.

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
87

1.
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
7,

69
1.

52
$ 

   
   

   
  

6,
99

3.
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
10

,9
08

.3
1

$ 
   

   
   

8,
69

0.
91

$ 
   

   
   

  
5,

44
1.

79
$ 

   
   

   
  

9,
01

3.
22

$ 
   

   
   

   
9,

44
8.

06
$ 

   
   

   
   

7,
73

6.
94

$ 
   

   
   

   
6,

23
2.

57
$ 

   
   

   
   

9,
57

7.
63

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ps

yc
hi

at
ric

 In
pa

tie
nt

7,
49

6.
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

,7
42

.7
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

,1
10

.3
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
11

,5
19

.6
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
20

,9
03

.2
8

$ 
   

   
   

-
$

 
5,

15
2.

58
$ 

   
   

   
  

23
,7

49
.4

6
$ 

   
   

   
24

,6
93

.0
6

$ 
   

   
   

8,
88

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
15

,2
28

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

75
0.

84
$ 

   
   

   
   

23
,8

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
Ps

yc
ho

th
er

ap
y 

an
d 

O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

10
,8

01
.9

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
78

6.
74

$ 
   

   
   

   
9,

30
1.

18
$ 

   
   

   
   

10
,0

99
.1

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
60

6.
28

$ 
   

   
   

  
8,

07
0.

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
,8

65
.2

3
$ 

   
   

   
9,

76
6.

38
$ 

   
   

   
  

17
,7

75
.3

9
$ 

   
   

   
38

,0
04

.8
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
25

,9
89

.1
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
22

,3
18

.1
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
17

,5
26

.6
8

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

99
9.

56
$ 

   
   

   
  

V
oc

at
io

na
l &

 S
ki

lls
 

B
ui

ld
in

g,
 F

am
ily

 a
nd

 H
ea

lth
 

Se
rv

ic
es

7,
94

3.
79

$ 
   

   
   

   
5,

87
3.

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

4,
91

5.
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
9,

02
3.

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

8,
36

4.
57

$ 
   

   
   

  
7,

98
4.

43
$ 

   
   

   
   

7,
15

1.
92

$ 
   

   
   

  
8,

84
3.

68
$ 

   
   

   
  

8,
01

3.
49

$ 
   

   
   

  
7,

87
8.

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
14

4.
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
5,

75
9.

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
80

7.
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
5,

85
6.

57
$ 

   
   

   
  

O
th

er
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

51
2.

58
$

51
2.

58
$

51
2.

58
$

51
2.

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l

25
4,

70
7.

77
$ 

   
   

  
27

3,
66

2.
34

$ 
   

   
  

23
4,

26
2.

50
$ 

   
   

  
25

4,
95

2.
44

$ 
   

   
  

24
6,

63
1.

63
$ 

   
   

 
25

2,
18

0.
13

$ 
   

   
  

26
1,

63
7.

82
$ 

   
   

 
27

5,
92

0.
21

$ 
   

   
 

26
1,

25
2.

88
$ 

   
   

 
30

3,
63

7.
68

$ 
   

   
  

29
4,

93
2.

09
$ 

   
   

  
27

3,
30

3.
23

$ 
   

   
  

29
9,

61
3.

43
$ 

   
   

  
21

6,
19

9.
71

$ 
   

   
 

N
um

be
r o

f R
eg

is
te

re
d 

Pe
op

le
 R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
91

98
93

88
91

94
98

95
83 

10
0

 
90 

93 
81

89
A

ve
ra

ge
 C

os
t p

er
 R

eg
is

te
re

d 
Pe

rs
on

 S
er

ve
d

2,
79

8.
99

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

79
2.

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
51

8.
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

89
7.

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
71

0.
24

$ 
   

   
   

  
2,

68
2.

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
66

9.
77

$ 
   

   
   

  
2,

90
4.

42
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
14

7.
63

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

03
6.

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

3,
27

7.
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

93
8.

74
$ 

   
   

   
   

3,
69

8.
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

42
9.

21
$ 

   
   

   
  

Se
rv

ic
e 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 
Pr

ov
id

ed
11

,9
60

10
,3

15
10

,4
49

12
,1

12
11

,5
42

 
12

,5
18

12
,3

12
 

11
,6

25
 

11
,7

83
 

11
,9

83
11

,9
43

10
,6

92
11

,5
99

6,
75

6
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 C
os

t p
er

 
Tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
21

$
 

27
$

 
22

$
 

21
$

 
21

$
 

20
$

 
21

$
 

24
$

 
22

$
 

25
$

 
25

$
 

26
$

 
26

$
 

32
$

 

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
ID

D
40

37
37

38
37

39
40

40
41

40
36

37
39

39
C

ou
nt

 o
f C

hi
ld

 ID
D

3
4

4
4

4
5

4
3

4
5

3
3

3
4

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
SM

I
37

44
42

37
41

41
45

41
30

43
41

45
31

33
C

ou
nt

 o
f C

hi
ld

 S
ED

11
13

10
9

9
9

9
11

8
12

10
8

8
13

To
ta

l
91

98
93

88
91

94
98

95
83 

10
0

 
90 

93 
81

89

ID
D

 A
du

lt 
C

os
t

18
3,

84
0.

28
$ 

   
   

  
17

0,
59

5.
09

$ 
   

   
  

16
7,

46
2.

58
$ 

   
   

  
18

2,
69

3.
91

$ 
   

   
  

16
3,

46
2.

65
$ 

   
   

 
18

7,
41

8.
07

$ 
   

   
  

17
5,

82
2.

97
$ 

   
   

 
18

5,
23

3.
01

$ 
   

   
 

17
3,

56
8.

36
$ 

   
   

 
19

1,
28

9.
51

$ 
   

   
  

19
6,

10
4.

94
$ 

   
   

  
18

4,
94

9.
20

$ 
   

   
  

20
3,

76
2.

53
$ 

   
   

  
16

5,
45

8.
00

$ 
   

   
 

ID
D

 C
hi

ld
 C

os
t

7,
72

9.
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
24

,1
84

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

36
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

9,
98

9.
56

$ 
   

   
   

   
11

,6
46

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

15
,5

00
.7

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

15
,0

98
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
13

,9
96

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

13
,2

47
.7

5
$ 

   
   

   
13

,9
14

.8
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
13

,1
32

.3
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

55
4.

43
$ 

   
   

   
   

8,
04

1.
82

$ 
   

   
   

   
3,

29
7.

86
$ 

   
   

   
  

A
du

lt 
SM

I C
os

t
50

,9
42

.2
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
68

,3
32

.5
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
49

,1
50

.7
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
38

,8
63

.8
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
58

,9
63

.4
8

$ 
   

   
   

37
,0

68
.2

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

55
,0

35
.8

5
$ 

   
   

   
53

,5
48

.2
0

$ 
   

   
   

64
,7

92
.0

9
$ 

   
   

   
79

,0
61

.1
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
72

,5
82

.8
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
67

,6
55

.1
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
74

,0
64

.9
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
35

,1
49

.1
6

$ 
   

   
   

C
hi

ld
 S

ED
 C

os
t

12
,1

95
. 9

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,5

50
.7

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,2

86
.1

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

23
,4

05
.0

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
,5

59
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
12

,1
93

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
15

,6
81

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

23
,1

43
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
9,

64
4.

68
$ 

   
   

   
  

19
,3

72
.1

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
,1

11
.9

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

14
,1

44
.4

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
,7

44
.1

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
,2

94
.6

9
$ 

   
   

   
To

ta
l

25
4,

70
7.

77
$ 

   
   

  
27

3,
66

2.
34

$ 
   

   
  

23
4,

26
2.

50
$ 

   
   

  
25

4,
95

2.
44

$ 
   

   
  

24
6,

63
1.

63
$ 

   
   

 
25

2,
18

0.
13

$ 
   

   
  

26
1,

63
7.

82
$ 

   
   

 
27

5,
92

0.
21

$ 
   

   
 

26
1,

25
2.

88
$ 

   
   

 
30

3,
63

7.
68

$ 
   

   
  

29
4,

93
2.

09
$ 

   
   

  
27

3,
30

3.
23

$ 
   

   
  

29
9,

61
3.

43
$ 

   
   

  
21

6,
19

9.
71

$ 
   

   
 

A
du

lt 
ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 

co
ns

um
er

4,
59

6.
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
4,

61
0.

68
$ 

   
   

   
   

4,
52

6.
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
4,

80
7.

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

4,
41

7.
91

$ 
   

   
   

  
4,

80
5.

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

4,
39

5.
57

$ 
   

   
   

  
4,

63
0.

83
$ 

   
   

   
  

4,
23

3.
37

$ 
   

   
   

  
4,

78
2.

24
$ 

   
   

   
   

5,
44

7.
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
4,

99
8.

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

5,
22

4.
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
4,

24
2.

51
$ 

   
   

   
  

C
hi

ld
 ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 

co
ns

um
er

2,
57

6.
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
6,

04
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
84

0.
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

49
7.

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
91

1.
63

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

10
0.

16
$ 

   
   

   
   

3,
77

4.
50

$ 
   

   
   

  
4,

66
5.

33
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
31

1.
94

$ 
   

   
   

  
2,

78
2.

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

4,
37

7.
45

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

18
4.

81
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
68

0.
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
82

4.
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

A
du

lt 
SM

I C
os

t p
er

 
co

ns
um

er
1,

37
6.

82
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
55

3.
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

17
0.

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
05

0.
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

43
8.

13
$ 

   
   

   
  

90
4.

10
$

1,
22

3.
02

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

30
6.

05
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
15

9.
74

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

83
8.

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
77

0.
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

50
3.

45
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
38

9.
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

06
5.

13
$ 

   
   

   
  

C
hi

ld
 S

ED
 C

os
t p

er
 

co
ns

um
er

1,
10

8.
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
81

1.
59

$
1,

02
8.

62
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
60

0.
56

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

39
5.

44
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
35

4.
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

74
2.

33
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
10

3.
91

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

20
5.

59
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
61

4.
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

31
1.

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
76

8.
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

71
8.

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

94
5.

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l

2,
79

8.
99

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

79
2.

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
51

8.
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

89
7.

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
71

0.
24

$ 
   

   
   

  
2,

68
2.

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
66

9.
77

$ 
   

   
   

  
2,

90
4.

42
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
14

7.
63

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

03
6.

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

3,
27

7.
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

93
8.

74
$ 

   
   

   
   

3,
69

8.
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
2,

42
9.

21
$ 

   
   

   
  

19



FY
20

25
-2

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Fo

r 
L

ee
la

na
u 

C
ou

nt
y

A
re

a 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
A

pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

A
du

lt 
ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 

co
ns

um
er

4,
59

6.
01

$ 
   

 
4,

61
0.

68
$ 

   
 

4,
52

6.
02

$ 
   

 
4,

80
7.

73
$ 

   
 

4,
41

7.
91

$ 
   

 
4,

80
5.

59
$ 

   
 

4,
39

5.
57

$ 
   

4,
63

0.
83

$ 
   

 
4,

23
3.

37
$ 

   
 

4,
78

2.
24

$ 
   

 
5,

44
7.

36
$ 

   
 

4,
99

8.
63

$ 
   

 
5,

22
4.

68
$ 

   
 

4,
24

2.
51

$ 
   

 
C

hi
ld

 ID
D

 C
os

t p
er

 
co

ns
um

er
2,

57
6.

44
$ 

   
 

6,
04

6.
00

$ 
   

 
1,

84
0.

75
$ 

   
 

2,
49

7.
39

$ 
   

 
2,

91
1.

63
$ 

   
 

3,
10

0.
16

$ 
   

 
3,

77
4.

50
$ 

   
4,

66
5.

33
$ 

   
 

3,
31

1.
94

$ 
   

 
2,

78
2.

97
$ 

   
 

4,
37

7.
45

$ 
   

 
2,

18
4.

81
$ 

   
 

2,
68

0.
61

$ 
   

 
82

4.
47

$ 
   

   
 

A
du

lt 
SM

I C
os

t p
er

 
co

ns
um

er
1,

37
6.

82
$ 

   
 

1,
55

3.
01

$ 
   

 
1,

17
0.

26
$ 

   
 

1,
05

0.
38

$ 
   

 
1,

43
8.

13
$ 

   
 

90
4.

10
$ 

   
   

 
1,

22
3.

02
$ 

   
1,

30
6.

05
$ 

   
 

2,
15

9.
74

$ 
   

 
1,

83
8.

63
$ 

   
 

1,
77

0.
31

$ 
   

 
1,

50
3.

45
$ 

   
 

2,
38

9.
19

$ 
   

 
1,

06
5.

13
$ 

   
 

C
hi

ld
 S

ED
 C

os
t p

er
 

co
ns

um
er

1,
10

8.
72

$ 
   

 
81

1.
59

$ 
   

   
 

1,
02

8.
62

$ 
   

 
2,

60
0.

56
$ 

   
 

1,
39

5.
44

$ 
   

 
1,

35
4.

78
$ 

   
 

1,
74

2.
33

$ 
   

2,
10

3.
91

$ 
   

 
1,

20
5.

59
$ 

   
 

1,
61

4.
35

$ 
   

 
1,

31
1.

19
$ 

   
 

1,
76

8.
06

$ 
   

 
1,

71
8.

02
$ 

   
 

94
5.

75
$ 

   
   

 
To

ta
l

2,
79

8.
99

$ 
   

 
2,

79
2.

47
$ 

   
 

2,
51

8.
95

$ 
   

 
2,

89
7.

19
$ 

   
 

2,
71

0.
24

$ 
   

 
2,

68
2.

77
$ 

   
 

2,
66

9.
77

$ 
   

2,
90

4.
42

$ 
   

 
3,

14
7.

63
$ 

   
 

3,
03

6.
38

$ 
   

 
3,

27
7.

02
$ 

   
 

2,
93

8.
74

$ 
   

 
3,

69
8.

93
$ 

   
 

2,
42

9.
21

$ 
   

 

20



FY
20

25
-2

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Fo

r 
M

is
sa

uk
ee

 C
ou

nt
y

A
re

a 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
A

pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

up
po

rts
 

(H
om

eb
as

ed
, R

es
pi

te
, 

R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

C
lu

bh
ou

se
 a

nd
 

N
ur

si
ng

23
,1

79
.0

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,8

95
.6

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

18
,2

17
.6

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

26
,0

85
.4

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,9

31
.9

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
,3

30
.2

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

31
,0

41
.8

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

28
,5

61
.8

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
,6

68
.2

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

26
,3

55
.3

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
,0

97
.1

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
,2

43
.1

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

18
,6

98
.1

6
$ 

   
   

   
10

,2
73

.4
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
A

ut
is

m
 S

er
vi

ce
s

15
,5

87
.1

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
,4

18
.7

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
,1

11
.7

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

22
,0

11
.5

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

22
,7

44
.0

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

25
,5

34
.9

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

21
,8

66
.4

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

26
,0

64
.8

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

24
,7

41
.2

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

25
,7

15
.8

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

23
,2

86
.7

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

17
,0

08
.5

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

19
,5

80
.5

5
$ 

   
   

   
4,

91
6.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
C

as
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

A
C

T 
an

d 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
nn

in
g

26
,5

83
.6

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,5

49
.6

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
,2

07
.0

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

22
,1

86
.0

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

22
,5

87
.1

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

26
,5

54
.3

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

28
,3

51
.0

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

35
,3

78
.3

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

37
,5

22
.9

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

57
,0

71
.7

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

47
,5

79
.9

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

46
,1

64
.7

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

71
,2

68
.8

5
$ 

   
   

   
42

,8
11

.9
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
C

om
m

un
ity

 L
iv

in
g 

Su
pp

or
ts

42
2,

94
6.

32
$ 

   
   

   
40

2,
97

7.
41

$ 
   

   
   

40
9,

52
8.

67
$ 

   
   

   
41

9,
86

6.
47

$ 
   

   
   

37
9,

89
3.

96
$ 

   
   

   
41

3,
98

7.
92

$ 
   

   
   

 
39

8,
93

7.
56

$ 
   

   
   

40
6,

72
6.

17
$ 

   
   

   
40

1,
24

9.
01

$ 
   

   
   

42
4,

52
0.

29
$ 

   
   

   
43

1,
67

0.
70

$ 
   

   
   

39
6,

35
7.

68
$ 

   
   

   
39

7,
44

1.
30

$ 
   

   
 

33
0,

64
0.

78
$ 

   
   

   
C

ris
is

 S
er

vi
ce

s, 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

an
d 

Te
st

in
g

11
,4

19
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

10
,9

84
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

14
,7

25
.2

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
77

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

11
,5

91
.7

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
,3

24
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

17
,7

68
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

9,
16

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

9,
61

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

19
,5

68
.8

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

15
,5

20
.8

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

17
,1

39
.0

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,8

02
.2

1
$ 

   
   

   
9,

69
9.

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Ph
ys

ic
ia

n 
Le

ve
l

12
,7

41
.3

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

12
,6

68
.7

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

12
,5

09
.8

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

13
,7

59
.9

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

15
,3

94
.1

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

15
,2

14
.8

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
,1

21
.8

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

16
,7

26
.8

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

15
,8

89
.8

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

18
,2

15
.6

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

16
,4

15
.2

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

16
,7

29
.1

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,9

56
.2

1
$ 

   
   

   
14

,8
76

.4
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ps

y c
hi

at
ric

 In
pa

tie
nt

10
,4

55
.4

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

39
,7

78
.3

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

23
,1

10
.3

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

13
,7

45
.3

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$

43
,1

63
.7

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

14
4,

06
2.

39
$ 

   
   

   
8,

88
3.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
24

,7
73

.2
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
51

,9
91

.4
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
34

,7
96

.3
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$
14

,1
61

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

20
,7

04
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

Ps
yc

ho
th

er
ap

y  
an

d 
O

ut
pa

tie
nt

 
Se

rv
ic

es
17

,8
68

.9
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

,2
07

.6
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

,9
84

.2
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
16

,7
21

.2
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

,1
09

.3
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
14

,1
06

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
15

,7
70

.1
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

,0
36

.8
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
22

,4
26

.1
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
43

,8
67

.6
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
40

,1
03

.3
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
36

,5
86

.8
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
56

,9
39

.4
2

$ 
   

   
   

29
,2

17
.3

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

V
oc

at
io

na
l &

 S
ki

lls
 B

ui
ld

in
g,

 
Fa

m
ily

 a
nd

 H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s

17
,9

68
.1

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

16
,1

15
.5

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

13
,0

25
.9

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

17
,9

38
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

14
,0

58
.0

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

14
,6

98
.2

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

11
,3

47
.0

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

10
,0

83
.6

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

13
,2

24
.5

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
,9

55
.4

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

8,
78

2.
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
,7

17
.4

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

10
,4

97
.5

8
$ 

   
   

   
10

,5
82

.4
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
O

th
e r

3,
56

7.
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
14

1.
64

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
95

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
85

3.
11

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
98

5.
64

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

82
5.

11
$

 
2,

22
9.

11
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
3.

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
8.

88
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

56
0.

51
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
8.

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

02
9.

78
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

82
2.

24
$ 

   
   

   
  

62
6.

22
$

 
To

ta
l

56
2,

31
6.

19
$ 

   
   

   
54

8,
73

7.
41

$ 
   

   
   

53
6,

37
0.

61
$ 

   
   

   
55

8,
94

2.
51

$ 
   

   
   

50
1,

29
5.

99
$ 

   
   

   
59

4,
73

9.
42

$ 
   

   
   

 
68

6,
49

5.
93

$ 
   

   
   

57
2,

62
6.

70
$ 

   
   

   
58

3,
11

4.
98

$ 
   

   
   

68
0,

82
2.

87
$ 

   
   

   
64

0,
76

1.
09

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

97
6.

27
$ 

   
   

   
63

2,
16

7.
52

$ 
   

   
 

47
4,

34
8.

27
$ 

   
   

   

N
um

be
r o

f R
eg

is
te

re
d 

Pe
op

le
 

R
ec

ei
vi

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

12
7

 
12

9
 

12
5

 
11

6
 

12
7

 
13

4
 

13
2

 
13

8
 

13
2

 
14

0
 

13
5

 
13

6
 

14
9

12
4

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 C

os
t p

er
 R

eg
is

te
re

d 
Pe

rs
on

 S
er

ve
d

4,
42

7.
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
25

3.
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
29

0.
96

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
81

8.
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
94

7.
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
43

8.
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

5,
20

0.
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
14

9.
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
41

7.
54

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
86

3.
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
74

6.
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
14

6.
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
24

2.
74

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

82
5.

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 P
ro

vi
de

d
27

,2
80

 
24

,3
08

 
24

,0
26

 
25

,9
61

 
23

,9
91

 
28

,0
82

 
20

,8
80

 
20

,5
24

 
18

,0
31

 
17

,6
69

 
16

,8
21

 
16

,1
79

 
17

,0
18

12
,5

68
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 C
os

t p
er

 T
ra

ns
ac

tio
n

21
$

 
23

$
 

22
$

 
22

$
 

21
$

 
21

$
 

33
$

 
28

$
 

32
$

 
39

$
 

38
$

 
35

$
 

37
$

38
$

 

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
ID

D
45 

44
43

43
45

46
44

44
43

43
43

43
44

40
C

ou
nt

 o
f C

hi
ld

 ID
D

15
10

10
10

10
9

11
14

9
8

8
8

10
7

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
SM

I
49 

59
60

47
54

60
53

55
54

65
60

58
65

54
C

ou
nt

 o
f C

hi
ld

 S
ED

18 
16

12
16

18
19

24
25

26
24

24
27

30
23

To
ta

l
12

7
 

12
9

 
12

5
 

11
6

 
12

7
 

13
4

 
13

2
 

13
8

 
13

2
 

14
0

 
13

5
 

13
6

 
14

9
12

4
 

ID
D

 A
du

lt 
C

os
t

39
4,

44
9.

03
$ 

   
   

   
35

9,
29

6.
96

$ 
   

   
   

36
8,

58
7.

39
$ 

   
   

   
37

9,
32

4.
87

$ 
   

   
   

34
4,

31
0.

42
$ 

   
   

   
38

4,
88

2.
38

$ 
   

   
   

 
37

2,
92

0.
09

$ 
   

   
   

37
5,

27
1.

13
$ 

   
   

   
38

7,
04

3.
66

$ 
   

   
   

39
9,

62
6.

99
$ 

   
   

   
38

5,
40

7.
77

$ 
   

   
   

38
6,

53
4.

37
$ 

   
   

   
41

0,
29

8.
66

$ 
   

   
 

33
4,

40
5.

11
$ 

   
   

   
ID

D
 C

hi
ld

 C
os

t
30

,3
28

.6
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
19

,0
50

.3
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
18

,9
77

.4
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

,3
75

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
28

,6
78

.5
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
32

,7
68

.1
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
62

,5
07

.6
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
35

,1
73

.3
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
32

,2
04

.2
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
34

,6
85

.5
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
32

,3
73

.1
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
21

,8
71

.3
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
31

,1
53

.0
7

$ 
   

   
   

10
,7

03
.1

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

A
du

lt 
SM

I C
os

t
11

6,
34

2.
52

$ 
   

   
   

14
9,

63
2.

65
$ 

   
   

   
13

5,
38

6.
73

$ 
   

   
   

12
8,

90
3.

14
$ 

   
   

   
10

5,
25

9.
99

$ 
   

   
   

14
7,

75
1.

63
$ 

   
   

   
 

19
8,

10
1.

42
$ 

   
   

   
12

5,
13

6.
23

$ 
   

   
   

12
9,

23
2.

11
$ 

   
   

   
20

6,
20

1.
62

$ 
   

   
   

17
1,

49
8.

38
$ 

   
   

   
11

2,
79

5.
81

$ 
   

   
   

11
8,

69
6.

66
$ 

   
   

 
10

0,
51

8.
50

$ 
   

   
   

C
hi

ld
 S

ED
 C

os
t

21
,1

96
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,7

57
.5

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

13
,4

19
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
,3

39
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

23
,0

47
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
,3

37
.2

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

52
,9

66
.7

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

37
,0

46
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

34
,6

35
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

40
,3

08
.6

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

51
,4

81
.8

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

42
,7

74
.7

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

72
,0

19
.1

3
$ 

   
   

   
28

,7
21

.5
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l

56
2,

31
6.

19
$ 

   
   

   
54

8,
73

7.
41

$ 
   

   
   

53
6,

37
0.

61
$ 

   
   

   
55

8,
94

2.
51

$ 
   

   
   

50
1,

29
5.

99
$ 

   
   

   
59

4,
73

9.
42

$ 
   

   
   

 
68

6,
49

5.
93

$ 
   

   
   

57
2,

62
6.

70
$ 

   
   

   
58

3,
11

4.
98

$ 
   

   
   

68
0,

82
2.

87
$ 

   
   

   
64

0,
76

1.
09

$ 
   

   
   

56
3,

97
6.

27
$ 

   
   

   
63

2,
16

7.
52

$ 
   

   
 

47
4,

34
8.

27
$ 

   
   

   

A
du

lt 
ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 c

on
su

m
e r

8,
76

5.
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
16

5.
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
57

1.
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
82

1.
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7,
65

1.
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
36

7.
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

8,
47

5.
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
52

8.
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

9,
00

1.
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

9,
29

3.
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
96

2.
97

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
98

9.
17

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

9,
32

4.
97

$ 
   

   
   

  
8,

36
0.

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
C

hi
ld

 ID
D

 C
os

t p
er

 c
on

su
m

e r
2,

02
1.

91
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

90
5.

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

89
7.

75
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

93
7.

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

86
7.

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

64
0.

91
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5,

68
2.

52
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

51
2.

38
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

57
8.

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4,

33
5.

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4,

04
6.

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

73
3.

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

11
5.

31
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
52

9.
01

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

A
du

lt 
SM

I C
os

t p
er

 c
on

su
m

e r
2,

37
4.

34
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

53
6.

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

25
6.

45
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

74
2.

62
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

94
9.

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

46
2.

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3,

73
7.

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

27
5.

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

39
3.

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

17
2.

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

85
8.

31
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

94
4.

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

82
6.

10
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
86

1.
45

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

C
hi

ld
 S

ED
 C

os
t p

er
 c

on
su

m
e r

1,
17

7.
56

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
29

7.
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
11

8.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
33

3.
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
28

0.
39

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
54

4.
07

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
20

6.
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
48

1.
84

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
33

2.
12

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
67

9.
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
14

5.
08

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
58

4.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
40

0.
64

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

24
8.

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l

4,
42

7.
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
25

3.
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
29

0.
96

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
81

8.
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
94

7.
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
43

8.
35

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

5,
20

0.
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
14

9.
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
41

7.
54

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
86

3.
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
74

6.
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
14

6.
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
24

2.
74

$ 
   

   
   

  
3,

82
5.

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

21



FY
20

25
-2

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
R

os
co

m
m

on
 C

ou
nt

y

A
re

a 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
A

pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

up
po

rts
 

(H
om

eb
as

ed
, R

es
pi

te
, 

R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

C
lu

bh
ou

se
 a

nd
 

N
ur

si
ng

40
,1

50
.0

8
$ 

   
38

,2
83

.6
8

$ 
   

42
,6

13
.5

0
$ 

   
56

,6
59

.3
7

$ 
   

28
,6

57
.8

1
$ 

   
44

,5
18

.4
5

$ 
  

43
,2

23
.7

4
$ 

   
44

,6
02

.3
8

$ 
   

40
,6

98
.7

2
$ 

   
48

,2
80

.0
4

$ 
   

   
39

,1
52

.3
5

$ 
   

42
,7

68
.4

9
$ 

   
46

,9
61

.4
7

$ 
   

   
36

,3
09

.6
5

$ 
   

A
ut

is
m

 S
er

vi
ce

s
6,

40
2.

63
$ 

   
  

12
,1

82
.4

4
$ 

   
23

,0
61

.1
3

$ 
   

25
,4

91
.8

4
$ 

   
29

,7
22

.6
5

$ 
   

35
,1

90
.6

7
$ 

  
35

,6
70

.8
2

$ 
   

33
,3

42
.1

0
$ 

   
35

,9
43

.2
0

$ 
   

46
,5

59
.9

6
$ 

   
   

48
,7

67
.6

6
$ 

   
53

,9
66

.2
9

$ 
   

55
,3

68
.0

2
$ 

   
   

4,
48

6.
00

$ 
   

  
C

as
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

A
C

T 
an

d 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
nn

in
g

76
,3

80
.2

8
$ 

   
72

,3
06

.9
7

$ 
   

61
,2

79
.3

9
$ 

   
72

,8
61

.5
2

$ 
   

74
,5

86
.5

6
$ 

   
81

,5
99

.4
0

$ 
  

94
,3

76
.5

9
$ 

   
96

,3
56

.3
4

$ 
   

75
,4

27
.4

0
$ 

   
13

6,
28

0.
25

$ 
   

 
12

3,
44

4.
42

$ 
 

12
3,

31
5.

05
$ 

 
13

2,
96

6.
44

$ 
   

 
10

4,
36

7.
64

$ 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

iv
in

g 
Su

pp
or

ts
45

5,
02

9.
46

$ 
 

45
9,

30
8.

40
$ 

 
45

9,
97

7.
64

$ 
 

49
9,

85
2.

74
$ 

 
49

2,
12

1.
09

$ 
 

52
7,

18
8.

56
$ 

53
3,

09
5.

49
$ 

 
54

4,
63

5.
31

$ 
 

52
3,

96
9.

67
$ 

 
55

9,
86

3.
33

$ 
   

 
53

0,
88

9.
61

$ 
 

53
9,

15
4.

04
$ 

 
54

5,
92

1.
85

$ 
   

 
41

4,
10

2.
60

$ 
 

C
ris

is
 S

er
vi

ce
s, 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 
an

d 
Te

st
in

g
35

,0
40

.4
4

$ 
   

21
,4

68
.2

0
$ 

   
18

,3
75

.0
0

$ 
   

10
,4

22
.0

0
$ 

   
13

,9
68

.0
0

$ 
   

19
,7

56
.0

0
$ 

  
21

,7
43

.0
0

$ 
   

23
,2

84
.8

8
$ 

   
14

,0
83

.8
8

$ 
   

15
,7

21
.7

2
$ 

   
   

21
,2

28
.7

4
$ 

   
34

,2
26

.4
5

$ 
   

31
,8

96
.4

8
$ 

   
   

17
,3

54
.5

3
$ 

   

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

Le
ve

l
42

,0
59

.6
5

$ 
   

38
,8

01
.5

7
$ 

   
33

,6
95

.8
3

$ 
   

43
,1

66
.3

2
$ 

   
39

,9
87

.9
9

$ 
   

36
,3

25
.3

9
$ 

  
38

,4
22

.5
4

$ 
   

37
,9

55
.3

4
$ 

   
34

,2
29

.2
6

$ 
   

41
,9

83
.5

3
$ 

   
   

42
,7

06
.8

3
$ 

   
37

,1
91

.1
8

$ 
   

39
,2

68
.6

4
$ 

   
   

35
,0

95
.7

8
$ 

   
Ps

yc
hi

at
ric

 In
pa

tie
nt

16
3,

29
9.

57
$ 

 
89

,2
80

.0
8

$ 
   

39
,3

37
.2

8
$ 

   
89

,0
34

.4
3

$ 
   

50
,1

35
.1

4
$ 

   
32

,4
66

.0
2

$ 
  

12
,7

97
.7

9
$ 

   
58

,8
30

.5
8

$ 
   

33
,8

18
.2

1
$ 

   
82

,4
88

.6
7

$ 
   

   
8,

02
1.

00
$ 

   
  

48
,5

84
.7

9
$ 

   
84

,8
59

.9
3

$ 
   

   
23

,5
04

.1
7

$ 
   

Ps
yc

ho
th

er
ap

y 
an

d 
O

ut
pa

tie
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
60

,5
58

.2
2

$ 
   

63
,0

59
.0

6
$ 

   
51

,4
23

.7
2

$ 
   

66
,6

27
.4

0
$ 

   
66

,1
58

.0
8

$ 
   

56
,8

01
.3

0
$ 

  
55

,3
47

.1
4

$ 
   

69
,2

98
.4

9
$ 

   
55

,6
31

.7
4

$ 
   

98
,5

33
.4

0
$ 

   
   

95
,1

52
.5

6
$ 

   
90

,7
69

.8
4

$ 
   

10
9,

41
0.

60
$ 

   
 

97
,3

48
.9

4
$ 

   
V

oc
at

io
na

l &
 S

ki
lls

 
B

ui
ld

in
g,

 F
am

ily
 a

nd
 H

ea
lth

 
Se

rv
ic

es
12

,4
06

.3
1

$ 
   

10
,2

96
.3

0
$ 

   
7,

27
8.

28
$ 

   
  

12
,1

30
.1

0
$ 

   
10

,8
63

.1
0

$ 
   

7,
54

6.
30

$ 
   

 
12

,0
96

.0
5

$ 
   

12
,4

00
.8

8
$ 

   
11

,5
43

.5
1

$ 
   

11
,4

63
.4

0
$ 

   
   

10
,0

31
.6

0
$ 

   
14

,9
14

.8
2

$ 
   

16
,2

36
.7

5
$ 

   
   

8,
24

3.
79

$ 
   

  
O

th
er

1,
30

1.
10

$ 
   

  
1,

87
5.

30
$ 

   
  

1,
14

6.
99

$ 
   

  
3,

49
6.

68
$ 

   
  

2,
12

3.
72

$ 
   

  
1,

87
2.

00
$ 

   
 

2,
55

5.
60

$ 
   

  
3,

04
3.

67
$ 

   
  

3,
14

4.
44

$ 
   

  
2,

50
6.

51
$ 

   
   

  
55

1.
07

$ 
   

   
  

1,
46

7.
65

$ 
   

  
10

4.
17

$ 
   

   
   

  
18

9.
40

$ 
   

   
  

To
ta

l
89

2,
62

7.
74

$ 
 

80
6,

86
2.

00
$ 

 
73

8,
18

8.
76

$ 
 

87
9,

74
2.

40
$ 

 
80

8,
32

4.
14

$ 
 

84
3,

26
4.

09
$ 

84
9,

32
8.

76
$ 

 
92

3,
74

9.
97

$ 
 

82
8,

49
0.

03
$ 

 
1,

04
3,

68
0.

81
$ 

 
91

9,
94

5.
84

$ 
 

98
6,

35
8.

60
$ 

 
1,

06
2,

99
4.

35
$ 

 
74

1,
00

2.
50

$ 
 

N
um

be
r o

f R
eg

is
te

re
d 

Pe
op

le
 

R
ec

ei
vi

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

30
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
6

   
   

   
   

   
29

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
29

6
 

30
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
9

 
27

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 C

os
t p

er
 R

eg
is

te
re

d 
Pe

rs
on

 S
er

ve
d

2,
93

6.
28

$ 
   

  
2,

61
9.

68
$ 

   
  

2,
42

8.
25

$ 
   

  
2,

90
3.

44
$ 

   
  

2,
73

0.
82

$ 
   

  
2,

84
8.

87
$ 

   
 

2,
89

8.
73

$ 
   

  
3,

00
8.

96
$ 

   
  

2,
73

4.
29

$ 
   

  
3,

52
5.

95
$ 

   
   

  
3,

04
6.

18
$ 

   
  

3,
38

9.
55

$ 
   

  
3,

67
8.

18
$ 

   
   

  
2,

66
5.

48
$ 

   
  

Se
rv

ic
e 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 
Pr

ov
id

ed
23

,8
13

   
   

   
  

22
,0

90
   

   
   

  
21

,2
26

   
   

   
  

25
,6

81
   

   
   

  
25

,3
35

   
   

   
  

27
,4

75
   

   
   

 
26

,4
09

   
   

   
  

26
,0

13
   

   
   

  
25

,3
46

   
   

   
  

25
,8

18
   

   
   

   
  

26
,4

75
   

   
   

  
28

,6
83

   
   

   
  

27
,0

98
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

84
   

   
   

  
A

ve
ra

ge
 C

os
t p

er
 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
37

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

35
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
36

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
40

$
 

35
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

39
$

 
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
ID

D
67 

67
67

61
62

61
63

62
65

64
63

65
67 

64
C

ou
nt

 o
f  C

hi
ld

 ID
D

21 
23

19
17

21
20

18
22

19
19

21
24

28 
22

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
SM

I
16

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

5
17

5
17

0
16

6
16

6
16

1
16

9
16

4
16

8
16

7
14

4
14

4
 

14
3

C
ou

nt
 o

f C
hi

ld
 S

ED
50 

53
43

55
47

49
51

54
55

45
51

58
50 

49
To

ta
l

30
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
6

   
   

   
   

   
29

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
29

6
 

30
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
9

 
27

8
   

   
   

   
   

 

ID
D

 A
du

lt 
C

os
t

37
6,

48
3.

76
$ 

 
35

5,
41

9.
75

$ 
 

34
7,

00
3.

58
$ 

 
39

1,
96

2.
95

$ 
 

36
4,

78
3.

31
$ 

 
38

2,
28

4.
89

$ 
39

8,
94

7.
78

$ 
 

41
9,

98
8.

17
$ 

 
38

7,
16

0.
59

$ 
 

43
0,

18
8.

12
$ 

   
 

40
4,

52
9.

61
$ 

 
44

1,
82

1.
76

$ 
 

45
4,

72
4.

42
$ 

   
 

33
0,

45
7.

43
$ 

 
ID

D
 C

hi
ld

 C
os

t
55

,2
43

.3
5

$ 
   

31
,2

86
.6

6
$ 

   
39

,5
60

.9
7

$ 
   

45
,6

17
.4

6
$ 

   
49

,2
78

.4
1

$ 
   

58
,0

21
.2

3
$ 

  
56

,8
39

.6
7

$ 
   

69
,0

82
.5

1
$ 

   
56

,1
84

.7
7

$ 
   

78
,6

14
.0

1
$ 

   
   

79
,7

21
.4

5
$ 

   
10

0,
60

6.
44

$ 
 

96
,2

41
.3

7
$ 

   
   

48
,5

55
.3

0
$ 

   
A

du
lt 

SM
I C

os
t

38
0,

69
2.

75
$ 

 
32

4,
35

6.
95

$ 
 

30
2,

56
1.

51
$ 

 
37

4,
42

4.
98

$ 
 

33
5,

00
1.

71
$ 

 
32

7,
51

7.
47

$ 
31

3,
91

6.
06

$ 
 

36
5,

22
0.

71
$ 

 
32

0,
42

3.
31

$ 
 

44
7,

40
8.

65
$ 

   
 

35
1,

97
3.

50
$ 

 
33

8,
28

4.
32

$ 
 

38
9,

85
2.

32
$ 

   
 

28
5,

65
6.

13
$ 

 
C

hi
l d

 S
ED

 C
os

t
80

,2
07

.8
8

$ 
   

95
,7

98
.6

4
$ 

   
49

,0
62

.7
0

$ 
   

67
,7

37
.0

1
$ 

   
59

,2
60

.7
1

$ 
   

75
,4

40
.5

0
$ 

  
79

,6
25

.2
5

$ 
   

69
,4

58
.5

8
$ 

   
64

,8
39

.8
1

$ 
   

87
,4

70
.0

3
$ 

   
   

83
,7

21
.2

8
$ 

   
10

5,
64

6.
08

$ 
 

12
2,

17
6.

24
$ 

   
 

76
,3

33
.6

4
$ 

   
To

ta
l

89
2,

62
7.

74
$ 

 
80

6,
86

2.
00

$ 
 

73
8,

18
8.

76
$ 

 
87

9,
74

2.
40

$ 
 

80
8,

32
4.

14
$ 

 
84

3,
26

4.
09

$ 
84

9,
32

8.
76

$ 
 

92
3,

74
9.

97
$ 

 
82

8,
60

8.
48

$ 
 

1,
04

3,
68

0.
81

$ 
 

91
9,

94
5.

84
$ 

 
98

6,
35

8.
60

$ 
 

1,
06

2,
99

4.
35

$ 
 

74
1,

00
2.

50
$ 

 

22



FY
20

25
-2

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
R

os
co

m
m

on
 C

ou
nt

y

A
re

a 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
A

pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

A
du

lt 
ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 

co
ns

um
er

5,
61

9.
16

$ 
   

  
5,

30
4.

77
$ 

   
  

5,
17

9.
16

$ 
   

  
6,

42
5.

62
$ 

   
  

5,
88

3.
60

$ 
   

  
6,

26
6.

97
$ 

   
 

6,
33

2.
50

$ 
   

  
6,

77
4.

00
$ 

   
  

5,
95

6.
32

$ 
   

  
6,

72
1.

69
$ 

   
   

  
6,

42
1.

10
$ 

   
  

6,
79

7.
26

$ 
   

  
6,

78
6.

93
$ 

   
   

  
5,

16
3.

40
$ 

   
  

C
hi

ld
 ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 

co
ns

um
er

2,
63

0.
64

$ 
   

  
1,

36
0.

29
$ 

   
  

2,
08

2.
16

$ 
   

  
2,

68
3.

38
$ 

   
  

2,
34

6.
59

$ 
   

  
2,

90
1.

06
$ 

   
 

3,
15

7.
76

$ 
   

  
3,

14
0.

11
$ 

   
  

2,
95

7.
09

$ 
   

  
4,

13
7.

58
$ 

   
   

  
3,

79
6.

26
$ 

   
  

4,
19

1.
94

$ 
   

  
3,

43
7.

19
$ 

   
   

  
2,

20
7.

06
$ 

   
  

A
du

lt 
SM

I C
os

t p
er

 
co

ns
um

er
2,

29
3.

33
$ 

   
  

1,
96

5.
80

$ 
   

  
1,

72
8.

92
$ 

   
  

2,
20

2.
50

$ 
   

  
2,

01
8.

08
$ 

   
  

1,
97

3.
00

$ 
   

 
1,

94
9.

79
$ 

   
  

2,
16

1.
07

$ 
   

  
1,

95
3.

80
$ 

   
  

2,
66

3.
15

$ 
   

   
  

2,
10

7.
63

$ 
   

  
2,

34
9.

20
$ 

   
  

2,
70

7.
31

$ 
   

   
  

1,
99

7.
60

$ 
   

  
C

hi
ld

 S
ED

 C
os

t p
er

 
co

ns
um

er
1,

60
4.

16
$ 

   
  

1,
80

7.
52

$ 
   

  
1,

14
0.

99
$ 

   
  

1,
23

1.
58

$ 
   

  
1,

26
0.

87
$ 

   
  

1,
53

9.
60

$ 
   

 
1,

56
1.

28
$ 

   
  

1,
28

6.
27

$ 
   

  
1,

17
8.

91
$ 

   
  

1,
94

3.
78

$ 
   

   
  

1,
64

1.
59

$ 
   

  
1,

82
1.

48
$ 

   
  

2,
44

3.
52

$ 
   

   
  

1,
55

7.
83

$ 
   

  
To

ta
l

2,
93

6.
28

$ 
   

  
2,

61
9.

68
$ 

   
  

2,
42

8.
25

$ 
   

  
2,

90
3.

44
$ 

   
  

2,
73

0.
82

$ 
   

  
2,

84
8.

87
$ 

   
 

2,
89

8.
73

$ 
   

  
3,

00
8.

96
$ 

   
  

2,
73

4.
68

$ 
   

  
3,

52
5.

95
$ 

   
   

  
3,

04
6.

18
$ 

   
  

3,
38

9.
55

$ 
   

  
3,

67
8.

18
$ 

   
   

  
2,

66
5.

48
$ 

   
  

23



FY
20

25
-2

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
W

ex
fo

rd
 C

ou
nt

y

A
re

a 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r 
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
A

pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

up
po

rts
 

(H
om

eb
as

ed
, R

es
pi

te
, 

R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

C
lu

bh
ou

se
 a

nd
 

N
ur

si
ng

13
5,

24
6.

89
$ 

   
   

12
0,

00
0.

45
$ 

   
   

97
,5

35
.8

2
$ 

   
   

  
11

0,
28

7.
02

$ 
   

   
10

6,
25

3.
66

$ 
   

   
13

1,
62

7.
67

$ 
   

   
13

4,
98

4.
94

$ 
   

   
13

4,
11

2.
09

$ 
   

   
14

0,
14

2.
35

$ 
   

   
17

2,
74

0.
50

$ 
   

   
15

5,
57

0.
90

$ 
   

   
15

4,
78

1.
06

$ 
   

   
16

6,
36

8.
60

$ 
   

   
12

1,
19

2.
97

$ 
   

   
A

ut
is

m
 S

er
vi

ce
s

79
,6

58
.4

2
$ 

   
   

  
84

,1
27

.7
0

$ 
   

   
  

68
,6

49
.8

5
$ 

   
   

  
83

,1
83

.2
9

$ 
   

   
  

73
,2

93
.0

1
$ 

   
   

  
89

,4
12

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

98
,8

99
.5

2
$ 

   
   

  
99

,3
24

.3
0

$ 
   

   
  

89
,3

22
.8

1
$ 

   
   

  
98

,4
89

.7
9

$ 
   

   
  

94
,7

13
.0

8
$ 

   
   

  
93

,7
53

.2
5

$ 
   

   
  

10
1,

78
1.

64
$ 

   
   

38
,8

20
.7

5
$ 

   
   

  
C

as
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

A
C

T 
an

d 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t P

la
nn

in
g

13
2,

08
8.

17
$ 

   
   

11
7,

15
2.

32
$ 

   
   

10
3,

02
7.

21
$ 

   
   

12
3,

73
2.

91
$ 

   
   

11
5,

47
5.

56
$ 

   
   

12
3,

35
9.

26
$ 

   
   

13
8,

85
8.

32
$ 

   
   

14
4,

55
2.

49
$ 

   
   

12
6,

44
9.

84
$ 

   
   

21
1,

95
9.

50
$ 

   
   

19
3,

77
2.

51
$ 

   
   

19
6,

40
5.

63
$ 

   
   

21
8,

55
9.

42
$ 

   
   

14
6,

35
2.

79
$ 

   
   

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

iv
in

g 
Su

pp
or

ts
82

0,
16

5.
42

$ 
   

   
78

3,
99

0.
73

$ 
   

   
81

0,
39

5.
28

$ 
   

   
80

0,
34

2.
19

$ 
   

   
76

9,
51

4.
50

$ 
   

   
86

0,
78

2.
11

$ 
   

   
85

2,
61

8.
03

$ 
   

   
86

1,
24

6.
97

$ 
   

   
84

4,
05

3.
10

$ 
   

   
89

3,
53

4.
38

$ 
   

   
87

8,
95

9.
24

$ 
   

   
87

8,
09

7.
74

$ 
   

   
86

8,
78

4.
53

$ 
   

   
81

1,
25

2.
03

$ 
   

   
C

ris
is

 S
er

vi
ce

s, 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

an
d 

Te
st

in
g

36
,2

51
.5

7
$ 

   
   

  
50

,3
39

.2
0

$ 
   

   
  

36
,2

81
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
43

,6
21

.4
2

$ 
   

   
  

42
,4

60
.1

2
$ 

   
   

  
46

,7
51

.3
2

$ 
   

   
  

38
,4

29
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
42

,2
46

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

48
,2

95
.4

8
$ 

   
   

  
64

,7
83

.8
7

$ 
   

   
  

59
,6

07
.8

4
$ 

   
   

  
73

,0
52

.1
2

$ 
   

   
  

92
,6

38
.1

2
$ 

   
   

  
76

,5
30

.3
1

$ 
   

   
  

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

Le
ve

l
75

,3
32

.6
8

$ 
   

   
  

59
,6

82
.0

5
$ 

   
   

  
52

,4
46

.9
5

$ 
   

   
  

64
,3

07
.4

4
$ 

   
   

  
67

,3
39

.0
2

$ 
   

   
  

67
,5

98
.4

1
$ 

   
   

  
80

,2
16

.8
9

$ 
   

   
  

60
,1

32
.1

1
$ 

   
   

  
57

,3
68

.2
5

$ 
   

   
  

70
,5

88
.6

8
$ 

   
   

  
56

,5
18

.0
4

$ 
   

   
  

69
,1

10
.3

6
$ 

   
   

  
73

,2
91

.3
0

$ 
   

   
  

53
,6

26
.9

6
$ 

   
   

  
Ps

yc
hi

at
ric

 In
pa

tie
nt

14
8,

99
6.

67
$ 

   
   

25
3,

03
2.

78
$ 

   
   

98
,9

15
.5

2
$ 

   
   

  
12

1,
54

2.
41

$ 
   

   
66

,7
57

.4
6

$ 
   

   
  

86
,1

23
.0

1
$ 

   
   

  
16

4,
98

4.
04

$ 
   

   
66

,0
15

.0
1

$ 
   

   
  

11
6,

26
9.

73
$ 

   
   

67
,4

78
.6

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

9,
37

1.
44

$ 
   

   
82

,4
67

.7
6

$ 
   

   
  

13
0,

17
3.

73
$ 

   
   

10
2,

47
5.

00
$ 

   
   

Ps
yc

ho
th

er
ap

y 
an

d 
O

ut
pa

tie
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
94

,7
59

.8
8

$ 
   

   
  

74
,3

15
.4

7
$ 

   
   

  
61

,8
67

.0
6

$ 
   

   
  

10
4,

31
8.

10
$ 

   
   

11
2,

30
0.

88
$ 

   
   

96
,7

56
.4

5
$ 

   
   

  
13

0,
21

1.
56

$ 
   

   
11

7,
46

4.
21

$ 
   

   
12

0,
87

7.
09

$ 
   

   
23

8,
65

3.
27

$ 
   

   
19

6,
37

0.
06

$ 
   

   
21

4,
30

6.
94

$ 
   

   
21

7,
61

1.
40

$ 
   

   
14

1,
76

7.
00

$ 
   

   
V

oc
at

io
na

l &
 S

ki
lls

 
B

ui
ld

in
g,

 F
am

ily
 a

nd
 H

ea
lth

 
Se

rv
ic

es
63

,1
63

.2
0

$ 
   

   
  

53
,6

76
.4

3
$ 

   
   

  
48

,0
48

.7
1

$ 
   

   
  

65
,3

55
.6

7
$ 

   
   

  
61

,5
41

.4
6

$ 
   

   
  

53
,1

93
.6

8
$ 

   
   

  
53

,3
47

.4
3

$ 
   

   
  

50
,2

52
.9

3
$ 

   
   

  
53

,0
81

.9
5

$ 
   

   
  

53
,6

39
.6

7
$ 

   
   

  
46

,1
05

.4
0

$ 
   

   
  

54
,4

96
.1

0
$ 

   
   

  
57

,0
83

.3
6

$ 
   

   
  

46
,3

23
.2

9
$ 

   
   

  
O

th
er

10
,2

39
.6

0
$ 

   
   

  
8,

25
7.

93
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
15

6.
61

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

60
9.

29
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
41

9.
89

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

07
3.

27
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,2

54
.0

6
$ 

   
   

  
8,

95
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
59

4.
22

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

51
0.

99
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
72

3.
83

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

98
5.

96
$ 

   
   

   
 

8,
16

5.
90

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

09
1.

34
$ 

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l
1,

59
5,

90
2.

50
$ 

   
1,

60
4,

57
5.

06
$ 

   
1,

38
3,

32
4.

01
$ 

   
1,

52
4,

29
9.

74
$ 

   
1,

42
2,

35
5.

56
$ 

   
1,

56
2,

67
7.

18
$ 

   
1,

70
2,

80
3.

79
$ 

   
1,

58
4,

30
4.

11
$ 

   
1,

60
5,

45
4.

82
$ 

   
1,

87
9,

37
9.

33
$ 

   
1,

79
8,

71
2.

34
$ 

   
1,

82
3,

45
6.

92
$ 

   
1,

93
4,

45
8.

00
$ 

   
1,

54
4,

43
2.

44
$ 

   

N
um

be
r o

f R
eg

is
te

re
d 

Pe
op

le
 R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
55

5
 

54
8

 
49

8
 

53
9

 
52

8
 

54
1

 
58

3
 

55
7

 
54

5
 

54
5

 
51

8
 

53
3

 
55

4
 

50
1

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 C

os
t p

er
 R

eg
is

te
re

d 
Pe

rs
on

 S
er

v e
d

2,
87

5.
50

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

92
8.

06
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
77

7.
76

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

82
8.

01
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
69

3.
86

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

88
8.

50
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
92

0.
76

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

84
4.

35
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
94

5.
79

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

44
8.

40
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
47

2.
42

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

42
1.

12
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
49

1.
80

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

08
2.

70
$ 

   
   

   
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 
Pr

ov
id

ed
58

,6
48

 
51

,6
07

 
50

,7
30

 
56

,1
67

 
53

,9
86

 
61

,2
32

 
58

,6
37

 
57

,9
98

 
58

,3
06

 
60

,9
89

 
57

,7
00

 
58

,6
24

 
59

,7
25

 
42

,9
66

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 C

os
t p

er
 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

27
$

 
31

$
 

27
$

 
27

$
 

26
$

 
26

$
 

29
$

 
27

$
 

28
$

 
31

$
 

31
$

 
31

$
 

32
$

 
36

$
 

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
ID

D
12

6
 

12
7

12
2

12
6

12
1

12
8

13
2

12
4

12
4

12
7

12
4

12
5

12
4

 
12

1
C

ou
nt

 o
f C

hi
ld

 ID
D

54 
58

52
54

52
55

57
59

60
51

64
55

62 
52

C
ou

nt
 o

f A
du

lt 
SM

I
28

2
 

26
4

23
8

26
4

26
0

25
9

27
7

26
2

25
4

26
7

22
5

24
1

24
2

 
22

9
C

ou
nt

 o
f C

hi
ld

 S
ED

93 
99

86
95

95
99

11
7

11
2

10
7

10
0

10
5

11
2

12
6

 
99

To
ta

l
55

5
 

54
8

 
49

8
 

53
9

 
52

8
 

54
1

 
58

3
 

55
7

 
54

5
 

54
5

 
51

8
 

53
3

 
55

4
 

50
1

 

ID
D

 A
du

lt 
C

os
t

76
4,

11
5.

55
$ 

   
   

81
2,

34
0.

60
$ 

   
   

73
8,

28
6.

68
$ 

   
   

75
5,

10
5.

79
$ 

   
   

72
0,

79
7.

26
$ 

   
   

76
9,

92
7.

14
$ 

   
   

75
3,

70
0.

70
$ 

   
   

74
4,

83
7.

33
$ 

   
   

74
2,

70
3.

44
$ 

   
   

80
5,

64
1.

55
$ 

   
   

78
9,

07
6.

80
$ 

   
   

79
7,

95
4.

09
$ 

   
   

81
0,

39
0.

88
$ 

   
   

73
2,

46
8.

73
$ 

   
   

ID
D

 C
hi

ld
 C

os
t

12
0,

54
7.

56
$ 

   
   

15
7,

70
8.

61
$ 

   
   

10
7,

97
9.

79
$ 

   
   

12
6,

30
1.

58
$ 

   
   

11
4,

39
2.

26
$ 

   
   

13
2,

67
7.

15
$ 

   
   

14
2,

68
6.

70
$ 

   
   

15
4,

66
4.

72
$ 

   
   

14
7,

10
6.

45
$ 

   
   

16
7,

09
4.

63
$ 

   
   

16
8,

64
8.

17
$ 

   
   

16
2,

93
2.

98
$ 

   
   

17
0,

09
0.

88
$ 

   
   

78
,5

40
.0

7
$ 

   
   

  
A

du
lt 

SM
I C

os
t

57
1,

73
1.

66
$ 

   
   

52
8,

26
4.

31
$ 

   
   

47
2,

76
8.

56
$ 

   
   

49
9,

29
3.

30
$ 

   
   

48
3,

37
5.

54
$ 

   
   

52
3,

02
8.

70
$ 

   
   

62
0,

26
5.

45
$ 

   
   

56
1,

19
9.

90
$ 

   
   

58
8,

13
4.

31
$ 

   
   

72
4,

66
6.

58
$ 

   
   

66
3,

81
2.

43
$ 

   
   

63
5,

37
8.

84
$ 

   
   

69
3,

66
8.

38
$ 

   
   

57
7,

91
5.

40
$ 

   
   

C
hi

ld
 S

ED
 C

os
t

13
9,

50
7.

73
$ 

   
   

10
6,

26
1.

54
$ 

   
   

64
,2

88
.9

8
$ 

   
   

  
14

3,
59

9.
07

$ 
   

   
10

3,
79

0.
50

$ 
   

   
13

7,
04

4.
19

$ 
   

   
18

6,
15

0.
94

$ 
   

   
12

3,
60

2.
16

$ 
   

   
12

7,
51

0.
62

$ 
   

   
18

1,
97

6.
57

$ 
   

   
17

7,
17

4.
94

$ 
   

   
22

7,
19

1.
01

$ 
   

   
26

0,
30

7.
86

$ 
   

   
15

5,
50

8.
24

$ 
   

   
To

ta
l

1,
59

5,
90

2.
50

$ 
   

1,
60

4,
57

5.
06

$ 
   

1,
38

3,
32

4.
01

$ 
   

1,
52

4,
29

9.
74

$ 
   

1,
42

2,
35

5.
56

$ 
   

1,
56

2,
67

7.
18

$ 
   

1,
70

2,
80

3.
79

$ 
   

1,
58

4,
30

4.
11

$ 
   

1,
60

5,
45

4.
82

$ 
   

1,
87

9,
37

9.
33

$ 
   

1,
79

8,
71

2.
34

$ 
   

1,
82

3,
45

6.
92

$ 
   

1,
93

4,
45

8.
00

$ 
   

1,
54

4,
43

2.
44

$ 
   

A
du

lt 
ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 

co
ns

um
er

6,
06

4.
41

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

39
6.

38
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
05

1.
53

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

99
2.

90
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
95

7.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

01
5.

06
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
70

9.
85

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

00
6.

75
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
98

9.
54

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

34
3.

63
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
36

3.
52

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

38
3.

63
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
53

5.
41

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

05
3.

46
$ 

   
   

   
 

C
hi

ld
 ID

D
 C

os
t p

er
 

co
ns

um
er

2,
23

2.
36

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

71
9.

11
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
07

6.
53

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

33
8.

92
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
19

9.
85

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

41
2.

31
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
50

3.
28

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

62
1.

44
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
45

1.
77

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

27
6.

37
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
63

5.
13

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

96
2.

42
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
74

3.
40

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

51
0.

39
$ 

   
   

   
 

A
du

lt 
SM

I C
os

t p
er

 
co

ns
um

er
2,

02
7.

42
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
00

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

98
6.

42
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
89

1.
26

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

85
9.

14
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
01

9.
42

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

23
9.

23
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
14

1.
98

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

31
5.

49
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
71

4.
11

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

95
0.

28
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
63

6.
43

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

86
6.

40
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
52

3.
65

$ 
   

   
   

 
C

hi
ld

 S
ED

 C
os

t p
er

 
co

ns
um

er
1,

50
0.

08
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
07

3.
35

$ 
   

   
   

 
74

7.
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
51

1.
57

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

09
2.

53
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
38

4.
28

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

59
1.

03
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
10

3.
59

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

19
1.

69
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
81

9.
77

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

68
7.

38
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
02

8.
49

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

06
5.

94
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
57

0.
79

$ 
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l

2,
87

5.
50

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

92
8.

06
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
77

7.
76

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

82
8.

01
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
69

3.
86

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

88
8.

50
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
92

0.
76

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

84
4.

35
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
94

5.
79

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

44
8.

40
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
47

2.
42

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

42
1.

12
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
49

1.
80

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

08
2.

70
$ 

   
   

   
 

24



FY
20

25
-2

6 
M

on
th

ly
 T

ea
m

 E
ff

ic
ie

nc
y

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
4

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
4

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

25
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

25
 M

ar
ch

 2
5

 A
pr

il 
25

 M
ay

 2
5

 Ju
ne

 2
5

 Ju
ly

 2
5

 A
ug

us
t 2

5
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
5

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
5

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
5

AC
T

35
%

19
.0

2%
17

.7
4%

14
.4

5%
19

.3
4%

20
.0

6%
18

.0
3%

21
.8

0%
17

.4
2%

16
.8

4%
16

.2
9%

19
.6

8%
14

.7
8%

17
.8

0%
CP

SS
30

%
19

.1
4%

18
.5

9%
20

.5
7%

19
.9

5%
18

.7
3%

21
.4

6%
19

.7
6%

23
.6

2%
28

.3
2%

28
.5

4%
28

.4
3%

28
.3

8%
28

.1
8%

CS
T

30
%

4.
33

%
4.

70
%

4.
73

%
3.

81
%

4.
94

%
3.

75
%

3.
87

%
3.

58
%

4.
74

%
4.

58
%

5.
22

%
5.

21
%

5.
18

%
ID

D
 A

du
lt

30
%

12
.3

8%
13

.7
3%

12
.1

1%
13

.6
6%

12
.6

1%
12

.6
7%

13
.8

9%
15

.9
2%

17
.6

9%
14

.7
6%

18
.2

7%
15

.6
5%

15
.2

8%
ID

D
 C

hi
ld

30
%

26
.2

2%
15

.0
0%

22
.5

7%
26

.6
5%

23
.6

3%
23

.5
5%

27
.6

3%
22

.0
2%

19
.8

4%
20

.0
3%

16
.5

5%
20

.1
0%

17
.2

5%
M

IA
 C

SM
30

%
21

.9
8%

22
.9

5%
24

.9
6%

25
.0

8%
24

.6
9%

24
.3

5%
25

.1
0%

24
.2

2%
24

.2
8%

28
.5

2%
29

.7
2%

26
.6

5%
33

.1
0%

M
IA

 O
P

50
%

41
.4

3%
35

.6
8%

37
.5

2%
43

.8
6%

46
.1

6%
43

.9
7%

42
.6

2%
40

.5
0%

43
.6

6%
46

.0
0%

46
.8

3%
51

.3
7%

60
.6

3%
SE

D
 H

B
30

%
18

.6
6%

18
.3

0%
19

.9
7%

16
.5

3%
16

.1
7%

20
.2

4%
21

.4
8%

25
.0

4%
22

.3
2%

20
.4

0%
21

.4
1%

23
.4

4%
22

.3
9%

SE
D

 O
P 

CS
M

35
%

29
.4

8%
23

.1
2%

25
.8

7%
29

.4
2%

26
.2

7%
29

.1
1%

28
.7

0%
27

.1
8%

27
.1

4%
22

.9
3%

23
.9

7%
30

.7
8%

32
.1

9%
SE

D
 P

SP
30

%
20

.3
3%

17
.3

2%
19

.4
8%

17
.6

3%
21

.6
4%

23
.3

3%
17

.7
4%

21
.4

8%
28

.1
0%

28
.1

9%
33

.4
5%

26
.6

3%
26

.3
0%

25



26



27



28



29



30



FY
20

25
 M

on
th

ly
 A

cc
es

s T
im

el
in

es
s,

 R
eq

ue
st

 to
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
W

ith
in

 1
4 

da
ys

51
58

45
70

70
72

71
62

49
75

54
69

O
ut

si
de

 1
4 

da
ys

18
8

10
12

12
10

16
16

12
6

7
8

Co
ns

um
er

 C
an

ce
lle

d/
Re

sc
he

du
le

d
9

10
5

10
9

10
10

11
6

11
10

4
Co

ns
um

er
 R

eq
ue

st
ed

 o
ut

si
de

 1
4 

da
ys

9
3

6
0

1
9

9
4

5
3

4
3

Co
ns

um
er

 N
o 

Sh
ow

ed
35

19
17

23
18

28
18

22
21

17
17

26
Co

ns
um

er
 C

ho
se

 to
 N

ot
 P

ur
su

e 
Sv

cs
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O

th
er

 (d
en

ia
l, 

no
 fo

llo
w

 u
p)

15
11

24
15

13
12

23
17

11
9

9
13

FY
20

25
 M

on
th

ly
 A

cc
es

s T
im

el
in

es
s,

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t t

o 
Se

rv
ic

e

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
W

ith
in

 1
4 

da
ys

55
45

42
53

55
52

68
60

48
63

41
60

O
ut

si
de

 1
4 

da
ys

3
3

3
3

3
3

7
0

2
2

3
2

Co
ns

um
er

 C
an

ce
lle

d/
Re

sc
he

du
le

d
1

2
3

6
1

4
9

2
2

3
2

3
Co

ns
um

er
 R

eq
ue

st
ed

 o
ut

si
de

 1
4 

da
ys

3
3

4
1

6
4

10
8

13
5

1
3

Co
ns

um
er

 N
o 

Sh
ow

ed
13

17
9

11
16

11
11

9
13

10
10

11
Co

ns
um

er
 C

ho
se

 to
 N

ot
 P

ur
su

e 
Sv

cs
0

0
2

2
1

0
1

2
3

4
1

1
O

th
er

 (d
en

ia
l, 

no
 fo

llo
w

 u
p)

7
6

9
0

6
17

10
12

7
3

5
9

M
on

th
ly

 %
 se

en
 in

 1
4 

D
ay

s
94

.8
%

93
.8

%
93

.3
%

94
.6

%
94

.8
%

94
.5

%
90

.7
%

10
0.

0%
96

.0
%

96
.9

%
93

.2
%

96
.8

%

31



Re
fe

rr
al

s f
or

 D
en

ie
d 

In
iti

al
 C

lin
ic

al
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
, F

Y2
5

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Ex
te

rn
al

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 P
ro

vi
de

r
7

2
6

3
2

1
1

4
3

1
1

Ex
te

rn
al

 S
U

D 
Pr

ov
id

er
3

1
2

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
o 

Re
fe

rr
al

3
3

1
0

2
3

3
7

0
2

4
O

th
er

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

4
5

3
5

6
4

1
1

1
5

5

FY
20

25
 M

ob
ile

 C
ris

is
 R

es
po

ns
e 

Ti
m

es
, M

on
th

ly

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
bu

ra
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

30
 M

in
ut

es
 o

r L
es

s
10

14
6

11
13

17
11

6
5

3
4

31
 M

in
ut

es
 to

 1
 H

ou
r

7
1

6
3

2
2

5
0

1
1

1
O

ve
r 1

 H
ou

r
8

3
3

6
2

2
2

4
0

0
0

FY
20

25
 In

pa
tie

nt
 R

ea
dm

is
si

on
 R

at
e

Ad
m

is
si

on
s

Re
ad

m
its

 in
 

30
 D

ay
s

%
 

Re
ad

m
itt

ed
O

ct
ob

er
73

7
10

%
N

ov
em

be
r

60
5

8%
D

ec
em

be
r

48
2

4%
Ja

nu
ar

y
62

7
11

%
Fe

br
ua

ry
42

8
19

%
M

ar
ch

51
11

22
%

Ap
ril

60
3

5%
M

ay
44

0
0%

Ju
ne

48
6

13
%

Ju
ly

44
4

9%
Au

gu
st

48
9

19
%

Se
pt

em
be

r
49

5
10

%
TO

TA
L

11
%

32



33



https://www.9and10news.com/2026/01/07/nlcmha-o8ers-mental-health-first-aid-
training-to-tackle-stigma-and-fear/ 

NLCMHA offers Mental Health First Aid 
training to tackle stigma and fear 
One in four Americans face mental health problems. 
TRAVERSE CITY —One in four Americans are expected to experience mental health problems, 
prompting the Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority (NLCMHA) to offer a series 
of Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) courses in 2026. These classes are designed to equip 
community members with the skills to assist those facing mental health challenges. 

The MHFA courses will take place on March 24, May 20, Aug. 25 and Oct. 27 for adults, along 
with sessions for youth on April 21, June 17 and Sept. 22 in Traverse City and Cadillac. 
According to Customer Relations Director Kari Barker at NLCMHA, “Lack of knowledge 
creates a feeling of helplessness, a sense of fear and stigma. Many people are unsure of what to 
do and how to help.” This initiative aims to combat that fear. 

MHFA is an internationally recognized training program that teaches participants to recognize 
the signs and symptoms of mental health issues while providing initial help until professional 
assistance can be obtained. More than 4.5 million people across the country have already 
received this training, making it a vital resource for communities. 

The courses will cover various mental health problems including substance abuse, mood 
disorders, anxiety disorders and psychotic disorders. Crisis situations addressed will include 
suicidal behaviors, overdoses and reactions to traumatic events. Cynthia Petersen, NLCMHA 
Community Provider Relations Specialist and MHFA trainer, stated, “It gives people a plan to 
deal with different crisis situations that might come their way.” 

It’s important to note that while MHFA provides crucial skills for assistance, it does not replace 
a professional therapist’s role. Barker emphasized that “early intervention is key. The earlier the 
intervention, the better the outcome.” This training prepares individuals to help others until more 
specialized care can be accessed. 

All MHFA programs are designed for individuals with little to no prior knowledge of mental 
health issues and are beneficial for various community members including employers, first 
responders and educators. The courses have also been approved for 12 continuing education 
credits by the Michigan Social Work Continuing Education Collaborative. The next steps for 
interested individuals will be to register for the classes as the dates approach. 

34

https://www.9and10news.com/2026/01/07/nlcmha-offers-mental-health-first-aid-training-to-tackle-stigma-and-fear/
https://www.9and10news.com/2026/01/07/nlcmha-offers-mental-health-first-aid-training-to-tackle-stigma-and-fear/
https://www.northernlakescmh.org/
https://www.northernlakescmh.org/


TRIBUNE NEWS SERVICE

A Michigan judge is expected to rule shortly on two lawsuits over a plan to possibly privatize the state’s
community health agencies, which critics fear will severely restrict their ability to function, while Michigan
authorities say it could boost efficiencies.

Two lawsuits were filed earlier this year by three regional entities that manage mental health, substance abuse
and disability care — called Prepaid Inpatient Health Plans, or PIHPs — along with seven Community Mental
Health agencies over a plan to possibly privatize some community mental health services.

The lawsuits were filed after Michigan Department of Health and Human Services issued a request for
proposals that allowed for both private and public entities to apply to take over handling of the state’s PIHPs
and mental health services.

Arguing earlier this month before Michigan Court of Appeals Judge Christopher Yates, who is expected to rule
soon, Christopher Cooke, one of the attorneys for four community mental health agencies, said if a bid is
granted to privatize some of these services, it will “essentially destroy” CMH’s ability to comply with its
statutory requirements in the mental health code.

“The lack of Medicaid funding will decimate our organizations,” Cooke said. “Even if it is allowed to survive,
it will be a very minimalist organization that won’t be able to comply with the statute.”

Since 2014, the state has had 10 regional entities that

SEE MDHHS PAGE 2

Plans outline restructure of Michigan mental health agencies

Judge to rule on legality of restructure proposal

MDHHS

FROM PAGE 1

manage mental health, substance abuse and disability care, or Prepaid Inpatient Health Plans, divided up by
regions of the state, to distribute millions of dollars in Medicaid funds. They offer a range of service for
everything from those battling substance abuse disorders to those with developmental disabilities.

But state officials say expanding these regional care plan providers to include outside private providers to
deliver care could improve services.

“The state’s intent here was to strengthen (Community Mental Health Service Programs’) statutory functions,”
said Assistant Attorney General Stephanie Service, who represents MDHHS, during a hearing before Yates.

Judge to rule on legality of proposal

Plans outline restructure of Michigan mental health agencies

Judge to rule on legality of restructure proposal

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

35



“(The issues) are all hypothetical at this point. We don’t know who will win the bids.”

PREVIOUS RULING

Mental health services for those facing everything from mental health issues and substance abuse disorders to
those with developmental disabilities are now coordinated through local Community Mental Health Service
programs and nonprofi ts across the state. They are often large agencies that handle millions of dollars in
funding from a range of sources and serve thousands of residents.

Yates has already ruled that the state is legally allowed to ask for public and private bids to run prepaid inpatient
health plans and decrease the number of regions from 10 to three. The most recent hearing was solely to
determine if the language of the request for proposals violates state law.

Yates, who heard three days of attorney arguments and witness testimony and will issue his ruling at a later
time, said he doesn’t run MDHHS but called the plan to accept public and private bids to run these plans and
agencies “crazy from a policy standpoint.”

But “I am not here to determine what good policy is,” Yates said. “All I have to do is determine if the (request
for proposals) is in violation of state law.”

Michigan’s 10 Prepaid Inpatient Health Plans are divided up by region. The plans manage provider networks,
including Community Mental Health programs, and behavioral health providers. They monitor network
providers to ensure Medicaid funds are used properly, according to the Michigan Department of Health and
Human Services. One PIHP manages each region, so providers can either contract with the PIHP or not provide
services to Medicaid recipients.

The Community Mental Health agencies that have sued — they sued in August, the same month the state’s
request for proposals went out — say the language of the request for proposals makes it impossible for them to
apply. Bidders can only bid if they provide services throughout the entire region, and they argue the way it is
structured makes it impossible for them to apply. They also say the proposal will create a more bureaucratic and
costly framework of services, making Community Mental Health agencies across the state unable to continue
providing services in the way they have in the past.

The state says whichever organizations end up as PIHPs must contract with Community Mental Health agencies
to provide specialty services and support.

WHY NEED FOR NEW

Service, the assistant attorney general, said the new request for proposals was issued because half of the state’s
Community Mental Health agencies elected to not sign a new contract with the state.

Bob Sheehan, CEO of the Community Mental Health Association of Michigan, said the five PIHPs that did not
sign the contract did so because the state added several unnegotiated amendments they don’t agree with. They
included uneven pay raises for care workers and no guarantee the state would pay the rate difference, along with
reducing the risk reserve below what actuaries determined was needed.

Yates, the judge, already has found that the state is legally allowed to move to solicit bids from both public and
private providers, and decrease the number of regions.

Service said CMH’s role is to deliver services, and the Prepaid Inpatient Health Plans’ (PIHP) role is to manage
them. PIHPs have historically delegated managerial duties to CMH, she said, and the state doesn’t want there to
be a situation where CMHs are managing themselves. Service said the request for proposals requires PIHPs to
contract with CMH.

“So the system, in your view, is a bit out of kilter because too much management is being done by (Community
Mental Health Services Programs)?” Yates asked. 36



“Absolutely,” Service said. “We’re trying to restore pure statutory function.”

Copyright (c)2025 The Record-Eagle, Edition 12/22/2025
Powered by TECNAVIA

Copyright (c)2025 The Record-Eagle, Edition 12/22/2025Monday, 12/22/2025   Page .A01

37

javascript:pl_openIFrame("https://www.record-eagle.com/");
javascript:pl_openIFrame("http://www.newsmemory.com");


https://www.cadillacnews.com/news/nlcmh-o3ering-mental-health-first-aid-courses-
throughout-2026/article_11fcd418-6ca6-4519-b480-75b3150dce2b.html 

NLCMH o(ering Mental Health First Aid courses 
throughout 2026  

• By Rick Charmoli Cadillac News

Jan 7, 2026 

Story Highlights • Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority is offering multiple 
full-day, in-person Mental Health First Aid courses throughout 2026 in Traverse City and 
Cadillac to help community members recognize and respond to mental health and substance 
use issues. 

With mental health issues affecting an estimated one in four Americans, Northern Lakes 
Community Mental Health Authority is offering a series of courses aimed at helping people 
recognize the signs of mental health disorders. 

NLCMHA has scheduled several Mental Health First Aid courses in 2026 designed to increase 
the ability of community members to assist individuals experiencing mental health or 
substance use challenges. The one-day training teaches participants how to identify conditions 
such as bipolar disorder and schizophrenia and how to respond appropriately. 

“Lack of knowledge creates a feeling of helplessness, a sense of fear and stigma,” said Kari 
Barker, director of customer relations at Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority. 
“Many people are unsure of what to do and how to help.” 

Courses focused on adult mental health issues will be held March 24, May 20, Aug. 25 and 
Oct. 27. Youth-focused courses are scheduled for April 21, June 17 and Sept. 22. All sessions 
are full-day, in-person classes offered in Traverse City and Cadillac. 

Mental Health First Aid is a skills-based training program that teaches participants how to 
recognize the signs and symptoms of mental health challenges, provide initial assistance and 
guide individuals toward professional help. The course covers both mental health and 
substance use issues. 

The program follows principles similar to traditional first aid training, emphasizing practical 
steps that can be taken until professional help is available. Participants are not trained as mental 
health professionals but are taught how to offer short-term support in crisis situations. 

“This is an international movement we have joined,” Barker said. 

38

https://www.cadillacnews.com/news/nlcmh-offering-mental-health-first-aid-courses-throughout-2026/article_11fcd418-6ca6-4519-b480-75b3150dce2b.html
https://www.cadillacnews.com/news/nlcmh-offering-mental-health-first-aid-courses-throughout-2026/article_11fcd418-6ca6-4519-b480-75b3150dce2b.html
https://www.cadillacnews.com/users/profile/rcharmoli


The training is intended for individuals with little or no prior knowledge of mental health 
issues. Course topics include substance use disorders, mood disorders, anxiety disorders and 
psychotic disorders. Crisis situations addressed in the workshop include suicidal behavior, 
overdoses, panic attacks, reactions to traumatic events and psychotic episodes. 

The course may be useful for employers, human resource professionals, law enforcement, 
faith-based leaders, first responders, educators and community group members. The 
techniques taught can be applied when assisting friends, family members, acquaintances or 
strangers. 

For more information or to register, contact training@nlcmh.org or visit northernlakescmh.org. 

 

39

mailto:training@nlcmh.org
http://northernlakescmh.org/


https://www.woodtv.com/news/michigan/judge-denies-state-request-to-revamp-mental-
health-funding/ 

Michigan 

Judge denies state request to revamp mental health 
funding  

by: Ken Kolker  

Posted: Jan 8, 2026 / 04:59 PM EST 

Updated: Jan 8, 2026 / 06:23 PM E 

GRAND RAPIDS, Mich. (WOOD) — A judge has denied the state of Michigan’s request to 
revamp how the mental health system is funded, ruling that the plan would have violated state 
law. 

Critics had argued the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services’ plan would have 
privatized mental health treatment. 

The system treats 300,000 people, many suffering with mental illness, at a cost of $4 billion a 
year, most of that from Medicaid. Right now, those Medicaid dollars funnel through 10 regions 
to the local community mental health agencies. 

The state plan called for just three regions and would have opened bidding to manage the money 
to nonprofits, state agencies or public universities. It planned to make the change in October 
2026. Local CMHs would not have been allowed to bid. 

Some of the state’s 46 community mental health agencies sued to block the move, fearing big 
nonprofit insurance companies would take over, that the local agencies would become only 
providers and that they would lose local control. 

Supporters of the plan argued the new system would fill gaps in treatment and provide more 
accountability. 

On Thursday, Court of Claims Judge Christopher Yates wrote that the state’s plan 
“impermissibly conflicts with Michigan law in numerous respects.” 

He wrote that it “violates Michigan law by inhibiting the CMHSPs (community mental health 
service providers) from fulfilling numerous statutory mandates set forth in the Michigan Mental 
Health Code.” 

40

https://www.woodtv.com/news/michigan/judge-denies-state-request-to-revamp-mental-health-funding/
https://www.woodtv.com/news/michigan/judge-denies-state-request-to-revamp-mental-health-funding/
https://www.woodtv.com/news/michigan/
https://www.woodtv.com/author/ken-kolker/


The ruling followed a three-day hearing in December. 

Yates wrote that the state’s proposal wrongfully would have kept community mental health 
agencies from entering into financial contracts for the purpose of funding “managed-care 
functions.” 

CMHs, he wrote, “play a crucial role not only as a direct provider of mental health services, but 
also in management or coordination of such care.” 

The state, he wrote, must decide “how to address the conflicts between Michigan law and the 
RFP (request for proposals) that the court has identified.” 

JUDGE’S RULING: https://www.woodtv.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/51/2026/01/Yates-
state-mental-health-funding-ruling-010826.pdf?ipid=promo-link-block2 

41

https://www.woodtv.com/news/grand-rapids/michigan-plan-to-revamp-mental-health-system-faces-opposition/


Munson Medical Center Granted $2.5 million by HRSA for Street Medicine Residency 
Expansion Project 

11.18.2025 

The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) has awarded a $2.5 million 
grant supporting a five-year project to enhance street medicine training to medical 
students enrolled in Munson Healthcare’s (MHC) Family Medicine Residency Program. 

One of only 24 such grants awarded nationwide, the funds will be used to launch the Rural 
Street Medicine Residency Expansion Project to train the next generation of primary care 
physicians in delivering care to individuals experiencing homelessness. This project will 
help expand research, establish an advisory board (to include community members 
experiencing homelessness), and support Munson, Traverse Health Clinic and Goodwill in 
their Street Medicine partnership serving Benzonia, Cadillac, Rapid City, and Traverse City. 

“These are among the most vulnerable people in our region, and this grant is going to help 
ensure they have access to care, where they are,” said Munson Healthcare’s David Klee, 
MD, Community Assistant Dean for the Michigan State University College of Human 
Medicine Traverse City Campus. “Over the next five years we will be implementing a 
comprehensive strategy to expand, enhance, and formalize a Rural Street Medicine 
Residency.” 

This new curriculum within Munson’s Family Residency Program through Michigan State 
University will integrate core competencies to equip physicians with the skills necessary to 
practice in complex care environments, including:  

• Primary care.

• Behavioral health with instruction in psychiatric medication stabilization.

• Addiction medicine including MOUD (Medications for Opioid Use Disorder) initiation
and induction.

• Medical-legal advocacy (legal aid or medical-legal partnerships).

Additionally, residents will be required to dedicate 5-8 hours per month providing clinical 
care through mobile medical units (MMUs), shelter-based clinics, and encampment 
outreach. 

“As this new curriculum takes root, we plan to build upon it with a Rural-Urban exchange 
program, opportunities for mentorship, and a ‘Grow Your Own’ street medicine 
development model,” added Klee. 

42



The Street Medicine partnership between Munson Healthcare, Traverse Health Clinic, and 
Goodwill Industries began in 2020.The initiative received the 2024 American Hospital 
Association (AHA) Dick Davidson NOVA Award for hospital-led collaborative efforts to 
improve community health. The program has seen 1,000 visits from 400 unique patients in 
Traverse City alone this year. 

To learn more about the Street Medicine Program, 
visit www.munsonhealthcare.org/services/community-health/street-medicine. 

43

http://www.munsonhealthcare.org/services/community-health/street-medicine


Street Medicine: Committed to Healthcare for All 

Homelessness Happens Here 

Homelessness continues to climb nationally. In Michigan, homelessness rates have 
increased for nearly a decade. In our ten-county region, it is estimated that 350 individuals 
are experiencing homelessness, with 260 of those in Grand Traverse. 

The Connection Between Health and Housing 

Unhoused individuals face disproportionately high rates of chronic conditions like 
diabetes, HIV/AIDS, heart disease, and mental health issues. The harsh realities of living 
without stable shelter or access to clean water and hygiene products—and the 
unpredictability of daily life—make managing health and recovery incredibly challenging. 
Unfortunately, homelessness can reduce life expectancy by up to thirty years. 

How Munson Is Helping 

Our community, including Munson Healthcare, has long been dedicated to addressing 
these challenges. To ensure healthcare access, Munson is proud to financially support and 
staff* the Street Medicine Program, which is made possible through collaboration among: 

• Traverse Health Clinic. Provides mobile unit services for billing and electronic
medical records, program oversight, and medical services.

• Goodwill Northern Michigan. Supports and provides connections to housing, basic
needs, and other community resources.

• The Munson Family Practice Residency Program. Our physician residents, led by
attending doctors, deliver medical services. 

44

https://www.munsonhealthcare.org/services/community-health/street-medicine#staff
https://www.traversehealthclinic.org/
https://www.goodwillnmi.org/
https://www.munsonhealthcare.org/clinical-education/family-practice-residency
https://www.traversehealthclinic.org/


The Street Medicine Program delivers essential, preventive, and life-saving medical 
services directly to those living in encampments. Our comprehensive care includes: 

• Preventive Healthcare: Screenings, blood pressure checks, mental health support,
and more.

• Acute Care: Treatment for wounds, injuries, burns, and other urgent needs.

• Substance Use Treatment: Support for managing and overcoming substance use
disorders.

• Pregnancy and Child Health: Care for pregnant individuals and well-child visits.

• HIV Testing and Prevention: Services provided in collaboration with the Munson
Healthcare Thomas Judd Care Center.

• Basic Needs Coordination: Connections to housing and other essential services.

Additionally, we prioritize patients for available housing and actively work with partners to 
enhance community housing resources. 

* Munson invests $150,000 annually to support the program’s growth and sustainability.
This funding allows a dedicated coordinator to enhance the program’s reach and
impact. Learn more.

45

https://www.munsonhealthcare.org/services/hiv-aids
https://www.munsonhealthcare.org/about-the-system/news-media-relations/news/munson-healthcare-donates-300000-traverse-health-clinic
https://www.goodwillnmi.org/


All Stories 10 MINUTE READ

A Community Approach to Street
Medicine in Traverse City

Written by

Amy Nienhouse

Published on

June 9, 2025

On a typical Friday morning, David Klee, MD, and several MSU medical students and residents gather bandages,

medication and other supplies into large backpacks. They prepare to start their rounds – not by seeing patients

inside a hospital or clinic – they visit one of several locations in Traverse City that provide medical care to people

experiencing homelessness.

Across Michigan, 8,000 people every night are considered homeless (8.2 people per 10,000). In a town known

for its picturesque lakeshores and foodie destinations, Traverse City is faced with a higher-than-average rate of

homelessness (9.2 people per 10,000). 

Search…

About Impact Education Research Clinical Care

Events News

MSU Health Sciences

46

https://www.healthsciences.msu.edu/news
https://humanmedicine.msu.edu/directory/klee-david.html
https://msu.edu/
https://www.healthsciences.msu.edu/about
https://www.healthsciences.msu.edu/impact/impact-overview
https://www.healthsciences.msu.edu/education
https://research.msu.edu/
https://www.healthsciences.msu.edu/clinical-care
https://www.healthsciences.msu.edu/events
https://www.healthsciences.msu.edu/news
https://www.healthsciences.msu.edu/


While many rural areas have limited

services for unhoused people, Traverse

City has a unique partnership with Munson

Healthcare, Goodwill Northern Michigan,

Traverse Health Clinic and Michigan State

University College of Human Medicine’s

Traverse City Campus. The city and five

surrounding counties are served by

Traverse City Street Medicine, one of the

few rural-based programs in the country,

where patients are treated for chronic

illnesses, infections, injuries, respiratory

problems, substance abuse and other

conditions.

The unhoused population in Traverse City

has a mortality rate three times that of the

community’s housed population, according

to Klee, who serves as the MSU College of

Human Medicine community assistant dean

and associate program director for the

MSU-affiliated Munson Family Medicine

Residency Program. “People who

experience homelessness die nearly 30

years earlier than the average American,”

he said. 

47

https://humanmedicine.msu.edu/about/campuses/Traverse-City.html
https://usich.gov/guidance-reports-data/data-trends
https://usich.gov/guidance-reports-data/data-trends


Two days a week, the Traverse City Street Medicine team sees patients out in the community through the health

clinic’s Mobile Medical Unit. “We literally meet them where they are,” said Klee. “We bring medical care to their

home, which could be a tent or vehicle.”  

The program began in 2016 through the MSU-affiliated Munson Family Residency Program. Since then, students

from the Colleges of Human Medicine and Osteopathic Medicine have participated in the program during their

Psychiatry clerkship, alongside MSU-Munson residents and Ferris State University pharmacy students.

This academic year, MSU medical students joined the Traverse City Street Medicine team for 38 half day shifts,

serving approximately 228 patients.

Compassionate Care for All
To effectively provide clinical care, medical

students and residents prioritize building

relationships with patients. “For many of

the unhoused, they’ve often had bad

experiences with traditional medical care

and have lost trust,” said Klee. 

The program’s mantra of “meeting them

where they are” is a big step toward

regaining trust in a system that has

previously failed some patients.

It immerses medical students in the

realities of homelessness, where they

witness the complexities of survival. A

trauma-informed, patient-centered

approach helps these future doctors

develop a deeper sense of empathy,

respect and understanding.

“If you’re out seeing patients in the woods

and you realize it’s 84 degrees out today

and there’s no water source, how do you

deal with that?” Klee said. “It helps

students understand true problems that

they might not think about if they’re seeing

patients in the clinic.”

Traverse City native Charlie Hornbogen

always knew he wanted to return to the

area and help care for his community. As a

College of Human Medicine student, he

was able to complete his third and fourth

years of medical school at the Traverse City Campus. That’s when he got involved with Traverse City Street

Medicine.

“I felt it was the perfect opportunity to make a difference,” said Hornbogen, MD. “Taking part in this as a medical

student and seeing first-hand the impact residents and physicians could have in the community is a large part of

why I not only chose family medicine as a specialty, but also why I wanted to do my residency with Munson

Family Medicine Program.”

48



Now as a family resident at Munson, Hornbogen continues serving unhoused

patients through the Street Medicine program a half day each week in the Mobile

Medical Unit. He sometimes sees those patients in the inpatient hospital, allowing for

continuity in their care. 

“The patients we see through the Street Medicine Program are people that are no

different from ourselves and experience many of the same needs, dreams, and

challenges,” said Hornbogen. “While they may be unhoused, I’ve been given the

opportunity to help lift them up, rather than look away.”

As the program grows, Klee is passionate about bringing the opportunity to more

College of Human Medicine students than just those in Traverse City. The College of

Human Medicine will soon launch a two-week street medicine elective open to

students from all eight community campuses.

A Holistic Approach to Medicine
The Street Medicine team’s multidisciplinary approach works to break down the silos of medicine.

“Some days, their highest need is not medical,” Klee said. “It may be they need to talk about their housing

application or they don’t have a state ID. That’s where we’re able to step aside and go, okay, well, you don’t

really need to talk to me. You need to talk to one of my partners here, so let me connect you with them.”

One of those partners is Bailey LaPan,

homeless services manager at Goodwill

Northern Michigan. His outreach team acts

as a bridge between medical providers and

those experiencing homelessness.

“It’s a symbiotic relationship. Individuals

receive both the health care they need and

the connection to vital housing and

support services,” said LaPan. “By working

together, we’re able to address the

immediate health concerns and long-term

stability in a more holistic way.”

The partnership has helped reduce the use

of emergency services. “It not only

provides essential medical care to some of

our most vulnerable neighbors but also

fosters a sense of safety, trust, and dignity

among clients,” he said.

What stands out most to LaPan since he

began working with the medical students,

is seeing them return, build relationships

and become trusted figures in our

community. “It’s powerful to see clients

recognize and welcome them, and to

watch those connections deepen over time,” he said.

49

https://humanmedicine.msu.edu/about/campuses/index.html
https://www.goodwillnmi.org/findinghome
https://www.goodwillnmi.org/findinghome


Continued Growth of Street Medicine
Program

The momentum for the program continues to grow. Each year, Klee welcomes nearly a dozen new medical

students and residents to the Street Medicine team. In addition to creating a sustainable program, Klee said the

constant rotation of students and residents brings positive energy.

“They’re new to the field and they’re excited. They want to be there,” he said.

In July, Traverse City Street Medicine will begin serving the unhoused population in Cadillac. Every Monday, the

team of providers, medical students and residents will bring the Mobile Medical Unit to the rural town 60 miles

south of Traverse City to see patients. 

The Mobile Medical Unit’s expansion is a partnership between New Hope Shelter, Northwest Michigan

Community Action Agency and Community Mental Health. 

Munson Healthcare recently donated $300,000 to support the expansion of Traverse City Street Medicine

services and staffing. 

More community collaboration and growth can “make an enormous difference for our neighboring communities

that currently lack access to basic needs and health care,” said LaPan. 

“The Street Medicine Program is more than just health care; it’s a vehicle for transformation. It changes lives—

both for the people receiving care and for those delivering it.”

By Amy Nienhouse | Media contact: Emily Linnert
50

mailto:wagnerem@msu.edu


January 8, 2026 

Commissioners Talk ARPA Projects, 2026 Committees/Schedule, Elk Rapids Dam 

By Beth Milligan 

Grand Traverse County commissioners Wednesday discussed the status of several outstanding projects 
planned to be funded by American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) dollars, which must be spent by the end of 
this year or else returned to the federal government. Commissioners also discussed their committee 
work and meeting schedule for 2026 and went into closed session to discuss the Elk Rapids 
Hydroelectric Dam. 

ARPA Projects 
Nervous about the potential for ARPA dollars they awarded to local projects to not be spent by a year-
end deadline, commissioners asked for updates Wednesday on outstanding ARPA projects. 

Federal ARPA requirements stipulate that funds, which had to be committed to specific projects or 
programs by the end of 2024, must be fully spent by the end of 2026. County commissioners awarded 
nearly $18 million in ARPA funding to almost 30 local organizations and projects. All but five of those 
recipients have now spent 100 percent of their funding, with initiatives ranging from fire engine 
replacement to food pantry support to affordable housing to childcare services. 

Of the remaining recipients who still need to spend their ARPA funds, two are close to completion. The 
Legacy Aviation Learning Center, which was awarded $500,000, has less than $8,000 remaining to spend 
and is thus over 98 percent complete. The National Alliance on Mental Illness Grand Traverse has spent 
over 80 percent of its $512,500 award for programming and services, with just over $101,000 to go. 

However, three other projects have more significant amounts yet unspent. Grand Traverse County 
partnered with Munson Healthcare and awarded $5 million toward the recently built Grand Traverse 
Mental Health Crisis and Access Center. Over $1 million in ARPA funding is still unspent for that project. 
Commissioners have received regular updates from Munson about the center but asked for another 
report soon specific to ARPA spending. County Administrator Nate Alger said such an update could be 
provided at the board’s January 21 meeting. 

Commissioners are also expected to receive an update at that meeting on the Traverse Bay Children’s 
Advocacy Center (CAC), which has only spent 67.6 percent of its $700,000 award toward child abuse 
trauma therapy services. That leaves nearly $227,000 remaining in ARPA funds to be spent. While some 
commissioners noted the CAC had planned on a phased approach to spending, Alger said he would still 

P4C T #y

P8C2T1#y3P8C2T1#y2P8C2T1#y1

51

https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzE1uqzAQAODT2DvQzHjM2Atvojzu4Z9xHiokEtCg9vS9QBddf9LXEreSsVhNKJOEiZwH-z8VKj0EYV-7cPRMiLE45AjNO4hol0RAEyAECI6IRxyLIXGEN6ZbvDvH93-zNySGYXuM557fuh96LvVD97G-NrsmQ7Oh-bqu33hLEsU7QG83PY780OFzaalFn2vvMnRgGNh1HoISDpp7lOKKlDLZPa1fz5a_dV11Nwz1tdV8nONTT3v-rXgn-gkAAP__IjNSpg&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075008416%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=bqu0nmCpMsxoIicWjGmPnQuSgjd757jJuh0YAfrpUZk%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzE1uqzAQAODT2DvQzHjM2Atvojzu4Z9xHiokEtCg9vS9QBddf9LXEreSsVhNKJOEiZwH-z8VKj0EYV-7cPRMiLE45AjNO4hol0RAEyAECI6IRxyLIXGEN6ZbvDvH93-zNySGYXuM557fuh96LvVD97G-NrsmQ7Oh-bqu33hLEsU7QG83PY780OFzaalFn2vvMnRgGNh1HoISDpp7lOKKlDLZPa1fz5a_dV11Nwz1tdV8nONTT3v-rXgn-gkAAP__IjNSpg&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075008416%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=bqu0nmCpMsxoIicWjGmPnQuSgjd757jJuh0YAfrpUZk%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMj82yoyAUhJ8Gdlh4DoouWEwq43vwc4iOohaQWDNPP5Xsbt3NXXd_X1cHo4KzreNkWt3roQfsJJ8NqhHII1oaItKgolRag-uj006PHvliQEIvWznIAQFU0zaOgUZobwpu4x1R3X9PHQPNlEyPpmb7olyoLn6l3Pgj8c3MtZ4MfzGYGEzXdTXRenLHsb5zBlOZbabcnPPJcHoyvL-B8oX47mUw7XQVBpM_UlpKWY6dchHVbquw-bTizMcf8rWI9wXxadVKVIqfKTw3ErStIttzCUUEmz5jwJPRo-5Qth1PVIp9kHguwYSxsz5GLaJUUiiMSgwErSAbR-3Qaed6ns32dw_2H20bZaakP5K3pTY7VV5_pngZ-B8AAP__LFiFiw&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075118452%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=wGjCcYNDstoM3x78ikYU03cFIfTRLvfbSCqgOPOXffw%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzk3O2yAUheHVwAwLLtjYAwaNUu-Dn0vsxtgW3MRqV1-llTrq4BufV49OciYFrwJHp-xgxwF0L_niFMBoMUmp82DNmLXPfghZBoVhUtHw1YGEQSo5ylEDmE51gYHVoG4GbtNda3P_PvcMLDOyPDqq_o21Ia3xibWLR-GbW4hOpr8xmBnMdK1EfycG83IUZHpu5OnVmL5_0vavva7rPyKDecerMZjjUcra2nrsWJsgvz2Fr6cXZz1-YKQmPufFn4oIsbW4YHptKHB7iurPNTWR_AfkxdnJ9lqqnhdszT9QvNbk0tT7mLMVWRopjM5GjAhKoM-TDTrYEAZe3fZzT_4XbhtWZmQ8SvSNuh2J09eIt4PfAQAA___tP4M9&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075169068%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=jmxMUj%2FdBLeQ%2BYASwgkEmegQmOdfH3IcAs8%2FFNuHQ1o%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMj8uO2yAUQL8G77DwBUO8YJGJx-vRtD_A43pCDXYEZKL26ytbUR_qprsDXJ3D9Vp4azrboO6UVCcJvGfNVUtlLUMGaOSgTiC6HoUDJSUTXlnWN0EDA8k6dmInDiDarrUEFIfuRcDLMHIuxtepJ6CIYOmjrdl8Yi5Yg1swt25LTdTXWm-EnwlMBKbH49HGsC7ow7q_E5jK1WQ85xpcRMKnFNZA-FjzHQnIe46Ej7ui_OX4t0RgWvFRCExuSymUErYVc6HVxIWafDP0lrdv6Gqh-1L0mKoVsRR3RX-PSDEuNJtb8IV6k46YrKHu3xovf0oJ9MC-mrgccH5_Ox_w9gzsh8txs5cOuPyqEZi-PIO_516fqvejfuBoUpO0GlTPWdc3CUsxH0jvwWs_9MbNs6IzE4wKPgt6QugomnlQlltlrWyyjt9Xb35gjJiJYG5LzpTarlib-n-KTw0_AwAA___U-LAl&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075221965%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=72b1Oq3ScPIPMh33qt%2BbZ2CBNSLpsyvm0v7YueerTMQ%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMjL1u9CAQAJ8GOqxlwcYuKL7TfX6PBZbzKf4TkLOSp4-itClSTTMzydsUSAfJXrvBjQOaHuTiIYbeoTFWo9M9AOVRp8jkMnPII8mnR8ABNIwwGkTb6S4IdAb1zeJtuhtj7__nXqATFrZH1wq9uFRuz_jGpYvHJle_tHZWYf4JnAXO13X9ogmcd77qD9TGe6NVLUxrW1TkvXFRZ-GTClfVDnWcvKt0HOW7kJt3k-sN6F5uXCs9WL0_k09TTzFnpzJYUNZkq0ZGrZjy5IIJLoRBFr9-7Ik-eV25CAvx2CLV1u3cZPvb4uXxKwAA___ImWxb&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075278741%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=b9waM5o8aS8rxz1qBdeX9Me7FxgpyJjUCAL8bqTT5G4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMjL1u9CAQAJ8GOqxlwcYuKL7TfX6PBZbzKf4TkLOSp4-itClSTTMzydsUSAfJXrvBjQOaHuTiIYbeoTFWo9M9AOVRp8jkMnPII8mnR8ABNIwwGkTb6S4IdAb1zeJtuhtj7__nXqATFrZH1wq9uFRuz_jGpYvHJle_tHZWYf4JnAXO13X9ogmcd77qD9TGe6NVLUxrW1TkvXFRZ-GTClfVDnWcvKt0HOW7kJt3k-sN6F5uXCs9WL0_k09TTzFnpzJYUNZkq0ZGrZjy5IIJLoRBFr9-7Ik-eV25CAvx2CLV1u3cZPvb4uXxKwAA___ImWxb&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075278741%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=b9waM5o8aS8rxz1qBdeX9Me7FxgpyJjUCAL8bqTT5G4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzDFyhCAUgOHTQIeDDxAtKLKz8R4PeK5MFB1g1ySnz6RPkfr_54tOR4-95-R6O9hxAGUkX53xoI1FI8FPcaCA5jeFCF6GoBB4ciBhkL0c5agAdNd3noFV0N803Ka7Uvr-PhsGlmm5P7pW8EWlUkvhg0oXjp1vbm3trEy9MZgZzNd1_bExmDNdlcG8U264iZVwa6sIlBsVUYmqSDkUwpryQ-Tn7qlUcRY6sVAVy1FEoZoi5ZZwE8-cmqDPE3NNR2Yw893ZyRole8N3qhUfJJ4pujgZDMtixSK1FFotWowEvSBcJuuVt94PvLjtK0f8pm2jwrQMxx6wti5T4-1_xMvBTwAAAP__Omt65w&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075329900%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=i4BVA0k8z2tVkJymmTNbhwaIX5vC3iCqUzj5wuQbUpk%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzs1u6yAQQOGngR0WngFjL1jcKNfvMcA4ceM_AYnVPn2Vrrvo_ujTSd6kQG2Q7FvXub4DtFre_WC7HiczBE4Bw2Anoh6NxUSoEYnk7EFDp1vd6x4BTNM2QYBDaC8GLsMV0Vz_j1aAE0avt6ZmenEuXOf44NzEfZWLv9d6FIH_BIwCxvM8f8kEjBufRcAY93WdS5n3jXNRlZaHonyQOvL-wbEW9T5SP1WtzKXEO6fnwoqXh8p0zKmoRG9Qrt4NzqJurVy5FLqxes7Jp8FSnCanJm20MjgZ1TO0imkaXMDgQuhk9svnluiLl4WzMDrua6RSm42rrH8jXh6-AwAA__8gJ3UO&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075070286%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9ClPoSmhH3wzOy9%2BtSeWRLjABdD39UyTVNSLB9OVa24%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMj8uO2yAUQL8G77DwBUO8YJGJx-vRtD_A43pCDXYEZKL26ytbUR_qprsDXJ3D9Vp4azrboO6UVCcJvGfNVUtlLUMGaOSgTiC6HoUDJSUTXlnWN0EDA8k6dmInDiDarrUEFIfuRcDLMHIuxtepJ6CIYOmjrdl8Yi5Yg1swt25LTdTXWm-EnwlMBKbH49HGsC7ow7q_E5jK1WQ85xpcRMKnFNZA-FjzHQnIe46Ej7ui_OX4t0RgWvFRCExuSymUErYVc6HVxIWafDP0lrdv6Gqh-1L0mKoVsRR3RX-PSDEuNJtb8IV6k46YrKHu3xovf0oJ9MC-mrgccH5_Ox_w9gzsh8txs5cOuPyqEZi-PIO_516fqvejfuBoUpO0GlTPWdc3CUsxH0jvwWs_9MbNs6IzE4wKPgt6QugomnlQlltlrWyyjt9Xb35gjJiJYG5LzpTarlib-n-KTw0_AwAA___U-LAl&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075221965%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=72b1Oq3ScPIPMh33qt%2BbZ2CBNSLpsyvm0v7YueerTMQ%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzk3O2yAUheHVwAwLLtjYAwaNUu-Dn0vsxtgW3MRqV1-llTrq4BufV49OciYFrwJHp-xgxwF0L_niFMBoMUmp82DNmLXPfghZBoVhUtHw1YGEQSo5ylEDmE51gYHVoG4GbtNda3P_PvcMLDOyPDqq_o21Ia3xibWLR-GbW4hOpr8xmBnMdK1EfycG83IUZHpu5OnVmL5_0vavva7rPyKDecerMZjjUcra2nrsWJsgvz2Fr6cXZz1-YKQmPufFn4oIsbW4YHptKHB7iurPNTWR_AfkxdnJ9lqqnhdszT9QvNbk0tT7mLMVWRopjM5GjAhKoM-TDTrYEAZe3fZzT_4XbhtWZmQ8SvSNuh2J09eIt4PfAQAA___tP4M9&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075169068%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=jmxMUj%2FdBLeQ%2BYASwgkEmegQmOdfH3IcAs8%2FFNuHQ1o%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMj82yoyAUhJ8Gdlh4DoouWEwq43vwc4iOohaQWDNPP5Xsbt3NXXd_X1cHo4KzreNkWt3roQfsJJ8NqhHII1oaItKgolRag-uj006PHvliQEIvWznIAQFU0zaOgUZobwpu4x1R3X9PHQPNlEyPpmb7olyoLn6l3Pgj8c3MtZ4MfzGYGEzXdTXRenLHsb5zBlOZbabcnPPJcHoyvL-B8oX47mUw7XQVBpM_UlpKWY6dchHVbquw-bTizMcf8rWI9wXxadVKVIqfKTw3ErStIttzCUUEmz5jwJPRo-5Qth1PVIp9kHguwYSxsz5GLaJUUiiMSgwErSAbR-3Qaed6ns32dw_2H20bZaakP5K3pTY7VV5_pngZ-B8AAP__LFiFiw&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075118452%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=wGjCcYNDstoM3x78ikYU03cFIfTRLvfbSCqgOPOXffw%3D&reserved=0


ask the organization to provide an update. East Bay Township, meanwhile, has the biggest outstanding 
award with no funds yet spent from its $2 million allocation toward a major upcoming sewer main 
replacement project in partnership with Acme Township. That project is estimated at over $16 million 
total. 

In a Tuesday email from East Bay Township Supervisor Beth Friend to Alger, she said the “much 
appreciated” county ARPA funding is planned to be spent on a portion of the project extending from the 
city wastewater treatment plant headed east. “The project will quickly rise to over $2 million in 
expenditures which will, after payment, be submitted to Grand Traverse County for repayment,” she 
wrote. “It is expected this will be in mid to late summer, well before the 12/31/2026 ARPA deadline.” 

The commission’s options are limited even if recipients don’t spend their funds, Alger and Finance 
Director Dean Bott warned. Since the funds had to be obligated to projects in 2024, they can’t now be 
reassigned elsewhere. A potential option would be subcontracting through the recipient organization – 
for example, the CAC – for another group to deliver the same services. It will become “a lot harder” to 
pivot as 2026 goes on, so ensuring there are “spends in place” for the outstanding recipients is key, said 
Vice Chair TJ Andrews. 

2026 Committees/Schedule 
Commissioners had an organizational meeting that preceded their regular meeting Wednesday, at which 
the board narrowly voted 5-4 to elect Andrews to serve another term as vice chair. Republicans on the 
board attempted to replace Andrews, a Democrat, with fellow Republican Brian McCallister as vice 
chair. However, as he previously did in 2025, Republican Chair Scott Sieffert broke the 4-4 voting tie 
along partisan lines and cast his vote for Andrews, retaining bipartisan leadership on the board. 

Commissioners also confirmed their meeting schedule and committee work for 2026. The board will 
continue to have regular meetings the first and third Wednesday of each month at 9am at the 
Governmental Center. However, commissioners will only have one study session per month – on the 
second Wednesday – instead of two as they previously did. They will hold the fourth Wednesday, which 
used to be a second study session, for ad hoc committee meetings instead. Commissioners updated 
their board rules to include that and a handful of other minor changes, such as putting minutes on the 
consent calendar instead of as a separate agenda item going forward. 

Commissioners kept their committee assignments – the boards for which they serve as county liaisons, 
such as Central Dispatch or the Land Bank Authority – the same for 2026 as 2025. They also 
reestablished several ad hoc committees to continue working in 2026, including a TIF/PILOT/brownfield 
committee, salary and retention committee, policy review committee, and animal control committee. 

Elk Rapids Dam 
Finally, commissioners went into closed session for about an hour Wednesday to discuss the Elk Rapids 
Hydroelectric Dam. That discussion item was originally scheduled to be in open session, but an 
attorney-client privileged memo related to the dam prompted the board to change course. 
Commissioners have discussed the dam – which is aging and needs significant repairs – at two previous 

52

https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzEFyrCAQANDTwA6raUBkweJPzfcegM2MiagFZKzJ6XOBLLJ_9Ravlxhk5OSlHe00ojLAnx4TZJKLNuMICqPOMAWTnNKSDDpHfPUIOIKECSaFqAc5RIZWobxpvLm7Uvr-fzYMLdNQHkOv4UW1UV_TJ9UhHYVv_tn72Zj6x3BmOF_X9QtjOO90NYbzWddEooeHSNtaYhPHLii0LmJ4i5AKiUYXVXHW44NSZzjz4q2zRoE0vFBr4UHia1384kxIOVuRQYPQKmsxEUpBITsbVbQxjrz67b0v4Zu2jSrTkI6SQuvDTp33vxUvjz8BAAD__7YJazg&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075379621%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4ql8gWT7%2BGBnO5deYxA9GJuPTeurmdoHfKGccCy%2FgMQ%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzEFyrCAQANDTwA6raUBkweJPzfcegM2MiagFZKzJ6XOBLLJ_9Ravlxhk5OSlHe00ojLAnx4TZJKLNuMICqPOMAWTnNKSDDpHfPUIOIKECSaFqAc5RIZWobxpvLm7Uvr-fzYMLdNQHkOv4UW1UV_TJ9UhHYVv_tn72Zj6x3BmOF_X9QtjOO90NYbzWddEooeHSNtaYhPHLii0LmJ4i5AKiUYXVXHW44NSZzjz4q2zRoE0vFBr4UHia1384kxIOVuRQYPQKmsxEUpBITsbVbQxjrz67b0v4Zu2jSrTkI6SQuvDTp33vxUvjz8BAAD__7YJazg&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075379621%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=4ql8gWT7%2BGBnO5deYxA9GJuPTeurmdoHfKGccCy%2FgMQ%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzL1u3yAUQPGngQ0LLhjsgaFR6vfg4_I3KmALSNz06avuHbIeHf2iVdE74SlaYbTZNMiV09OmGGALaddBo5ZRetR8lbCqsAnY9kizBQ6aC77xTQKoRSyegJEg3hS87e9Sqvefx0rAEMXra5ndfWIfOHP4hX0JV6XFnnPeg8gfBA4Cx_M8_9kIHA2fQeBwNUeGv2_XIkYWXCmDpauzE9sc4cQyWMeRX83NfDUWro82v1i4as1j_CtYMMzBGj7M59v1mYdrrKCL2MeZbwIHrdbsZpVcrLTiGO6F7CNHG_fVhZQMS1xxpmRSbEMQDF3ajZfeeK9pt-WrRfcHS8FOFA9XDW7MpeGk83vEp4W_AQAA__82xn_2&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075517784%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2FEcug81yVOu1ay7HCcA0fWLvqVTHg4h7yZJMmcZbxe4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMj0uOGzEMRE-j3nVDIvXrhRb2eHQPfShbSH8ctexgcvrATrKfDflAsApV2ckcg4gDOWG0sRpQ8eHmihBZ5TAngTyZQJSTECqbWRe0KqihOuCgueCWWwSQk5giA4MgzhLO8wVRXj69YmCY5Ot16i08qR3Ua_pBbUr7Oizu1vv9YHhi4Bn4awtb_v-X9sfWv6ZUnzX9ojht1Bn4vKfHStsLwRhrFQN_6j2kG2UGCvh9oXDQG0vd_t7Cey716G_Yy3s1-vmo7Z8s7etae5_uuTD0t7DlhRhevBT29PHBz8it9PZkcbb46cUZtNVa2WF1ZjYKuVDDSscRrjQ-anZ5ViGVYsbCJR8lFjlaAjFSKLOJGE2Memhu-dpy-E3LQo3JV4YUjv5qOvTvWTwd_AkAAP__S76EmA&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075563259%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Hnnt2Jdr7ADgSOflBEdGmD156%2B2POeJZKCRbjE7Kivg%3D&reserved=0


meetings. While most properties impacted by water levels controlled by the dam are in Antrim County, a 
few hundred are in Grand Traverse County. 

Antrim County Drain Commissioner Leslie Meyers and attorney Stacy Hissong of Fahey Schultz Burzych 
Rhodes PLC previously presented a proposal to commissioners to create a special assessment district 
(SAD), which would require property owners – those benefiting from the dam maintenance, such as on 
Elk Lake and Lake Skegemog – to participate in repair costs. Following their closed session Wednesday, 
commissioners came back into open session and approved a motion to have Alger work with the drain 
commissioner “to seek written responses to written questions to better understand the Lower Chain of 
Lakes project and to ensure the protection of Grand Traverse County's and its property owners' 
interests.” 

P 4#y

P 6#y

53

https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzDGO6yAQANDTQIcFAxi7oPhRvu8xwJCg2I4FJFb29Kvtt9j-6SVvUkAVOHnlRjeNoK3kd29TiDEA2OxyjCpBVIAQZswgIwbkxYOEUSo5yUkDmEENgYHToC4GLvNVa3P9v1gGjhm53YZe8U21US_xQXWIz42v_t770Zj-x2BhsJzn-QtjsOx0NgZLfL72XqgJ-pCodGCpTWAXtD5ExaOkJhL-eL55NzurpbJ8o9bwRuJVkk-zxZizE1kaKYzORkwEShDm2QUdXAgjr3797Am_aF2pMiPjc4vY-rBT5_1vxdvDdwAAAP__ocNplQ&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075609023%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PtlnntqvGLs7FsYofTrY7r4zCq1NblM5YHICaM0xOzY%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzEGO4yAQQNHTwA6rKAoDCxYTZbjGqIByYsVORjYTafr0veg-QK__1-uZemVbtWQb5hBndB70PQcfwWNrMQaYU6sCQLXZUCXNUBfUa0bAGSxEiA6RJjtVhcGhvRBe0tU5uv4uXmFQBPttGge_5ThlrO0hx9Reu97yfYy_p3K_FBaFZTTzXbf1HLLzun2dCgv3U2HZ1udDYXEOFJZdbvzHKiypeyDxs-EloSFCMikAG2YnrvvYIovCovccUvAOrNe7nCffxPxbe-7Jc1uWYBYgMOQWMlHQGuElhepqqHXWR97-Pzt_yLbJoQjaa298jukpQ4-fEe-MnwEAAP__zplpyA&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075426222%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FbKJyMaj9kS3dyzexd9%2FFLozYbMgfkGUOwY0tY81v70%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Femail.mg.traverseticker.com%2Fc%2FeJyMzEGO4yAQQNHTwA6rKAowCxYTZbjGqIByYsVORjYTafr0veg-QK__1-uZemVbtWQbQ5wDOg_6nlNtvWFACGH2LfpKncNifWAGi5b0mhEwgIUZZodIk52qwujQXggv6eocXX8XrzAqgv02jYPfcpwy1vaQY2qvXW_5PsbfU7lfCovCMpr5rtt6Dtl53b5OhYX7qbBs6_OhsDgHCssuN_6DCkvqHkh8MLwkNERIJkVgw-zEdT-3mUVh0XuOKXoH1utdzpNvYv6tPffkuS1LNAsQGHILmVnQGuElxepqrDXoI2__n50_ZNvkUATttTc-x_SUocfPiHfGzwAAAP__yMhpuw&data=05%7C02%7Calexandra.coon%40nlcmh.org%7Ca220853955ac4694f22708de4ed66e38%7C95bbc5e9b32d43daa168f5abda3cf4e7%7C0%7C0%7C639034880075477934%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fjAcVr69K6nLFGufiedcAOXFVDnvUlCGynlCOEBoHDM%3D&reserved=0

	ADP7A94.tmp
	Judge denies state request to revamp mental health funding




